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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2022,

FY2022 proved to be another challenging year, with the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic continuing to wreak havoc on almost all
industries and economic activities. Following the implementation of
pandemic prevention measures by the government, the Group’s
medical aesthetic centres were temporarily closed between 7 January
and 20 April 2022. The management and frontline colleagues
responded to the situation in a timely manner by adjusting operational
strategies and introducing operating cost control plans to alleviate the
impact of the pandemic and preventive measures on the Group’s
business, enabling it to adapt to the new normal amid the pandemic.
With the exception of the business suspension period in FY2022, the
Group’s business maintained a rapid growth rate. After the outbreak
stabilised and business resumed, our business rebounded quickly
and continued the strong growth momentum seen before the
suspension.

Although the operating environment was relatively difficult and
uncertain over the past year, we managed to seize opportunities and
achieved record-high revenue of over HK$360 million. However, the
near three-month business suspension had a certain impact on the
Group’s profitability. As a result, the profit margin was lower than in
previous year and the normal level. To this end, we will review the
Group’s operational strategies and models on a regular and
continuous basis so as to maintain a reasonable and continuous rise
in profit while capitalising the rapid growth of the industry and the
Group under the new normal.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

To further expand the coverage of our service network, we opened
new medical aesthetic centres and retail stores for skincare products,
which resulted in higher rental expenses and depreciation when
compared with the previous year. Moreover, affected by the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic, the revenue and profit potential of new stores
was not fully reflected in FY2022. Nevertheless, the opening of new
stores serves as a foundation for the Group’s future development and
provides a driver for revenue and profit growth. We expect that with
the expansion of the three brands, the Group will deliver an even
better overall business performance and achieve stronger economies
of scale.

As always, we are dedicated to the adherence of our core values of
professionalism and safety and are determined to provide customers
with quality services and products. Consequently, the profound
expertise and extensive experience of our professional teams
constitute one of the Group’s most valuable assets. We trust that the
solid foundation built over the years will be fundamental to the
Group’s sustainable development going forward.

In FY2023, we will continue to invest in research and development
and introduce new treatment services and products to enrich our
business and promote the development of the Group. We will also
actively explore local and overseas business opportunities, with the
aim of expanding and diversifying our business presence and
customer base. We are committed to implementing these
development plans, the results of which will help boost the Group’s
revenue and profit. This will also allow us to maximise returns for
shareholders while maintaining steady business growth.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders,
business partners, suppliers and customers for their support. My
heartfelt appreciation also goes to our management and teams for
their dedication and contributions over the past year.

Lai Ka Yee Gigi
Chairlady & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRD

Business Review

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year Under Review”), the
Group’s revenue increased by HK$235.0 million, or 182.3%, to
HK$363.9 million when compared with the year ended 31 March
2021 (the “Previous Year”). The notable climb was mainly benefit from
the improvement in consumer sentiment as a result of the
containment of the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19 pandemic”
or the “pandemic”) in the first half of 2021, aided by the Consumption
Voucher Scheme. During the Year Under Review, the Group’s
treatment centres were temporarily closed between 7 January and 31
March 2022, in accordance with the pandemic prevention measures
announced by the government. However, the Group responded to
the situation in a timely manner and adjusted its operating strategy to
reduce the impact of the pandemic and preventive measures. With
the exception of the business suspension period in FY2022, the
Group’s business maintained rapid growth. After the pandemic
stabilised and business resumed, the business rebounded sharply
and continued the strong growth momentum seen before the
suspension. Moreover, the Group returned to profitability during the
Year Under Review, which is attributable to the implementation of
operating cost control and other countermeasures, with profit
amounting to approximately HK$25.4 million (Previous Year: net loss
of approximately HK$12.7 million).

The Group currently operates three CosMax+ medical aesthetic
centres in prime and strategic locations, enabling the Group to attract
and establish a diverse customer base. The Group has continued to
invest in and introduce the latest technologies, ensuring the provision
of top-notch and high-quality services to customers. In addition, the
Group’s state-of-the-art treatment devices are able to realise different
personalise treatment services for its customers. The devices and
procedures have all been clinically evaluated by doctors before being
adopted, so as to provide customers with safe and superb quality
experiences.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Business Review (Continued)

“Healthy Beauty” is now a widely accepted aesthetic standard in the
beauty industry and among consumers, thus the Group has unveiled
VITAE, a new beauty brand. The brand’s founder, Mrs. Gigi Ma,
established VITAE based on the principle and foundation of “inner
health realises external beauty” — the brand focuses on balancing
beauty while maintaining a perfect balance between beauty and
health, and emanating beauty from within. VITAE perfectly translates
this philosophy into the brand’s service concept. With the rising
awareness of health among the public, the Group believes that
“Healthy Beauty” will become a new trend in the market. The Group
currently operates three VITAE treatment centres in prime locations.

XOVE is a line of premium skincare products developed by a team of
Swiss skincare specialists. In addition to meeting the daily skincare
needs of customers, it is able to achieve optimal results when
combined with the treatment services provided by the Group. During
the Year Under Review, the Group operated five retail stores in first-
tier shopping malls in Hong Kong, and has been promoting its
products online through various platforms in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. The Group is well positioned to capture more potential
customers, and will continue to seize the opportunity to deepen
market penetration through effective marketing strategies and the
opening of new retail stores.

The medical aesthetics industry has experienced rapid growth in
recent years, and its growth rate is relatively higher than that of other
industries. The Group’s three brands not only have their own unique
advantages, but also form a comprehensive layout for the Group in
medical aesthetics and related industries. Looking ahead, we will
continue to explore different business opportunities, including
continuing to expand our business and retail store network, to further
extend our coverage to reach a wider range of consumers. It is
expected that as the brands grow stronger, the Group will deliver an
even better overall business performance and achieve stronger
economies of scale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRD

Financial Review

Revenue

Our revenue is mainly derived from the provision of medical aesthetic
services, which include treatment services, prescription and
dispensing of medical products. In addition, we sell skin care
products to our clients.

Our Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$363.9 million
for the Year Under Review, representing an increase of approximately
HK$235.0 million or 182.3% as compared with HK$128.9 million for
the Previous Year. During the Year Under Review, our Group opened
2 new treatment centres and 5 retail stores for the sale of skin care
products. By implementation of effective market promotions which
increase the public awareness for our brands, revenue from both
treatment services and sale of skin care products were increased
significantly as compared to Previous Year.

B 75 el 8
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For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIHLEE

2022 2021

HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

FET Baotk T Bok

Treatment services BZIRTS 289,096 79.4 108,417 84.1

Skin care products EEEMR 74,295 20.5 19,915 15.5

Medical consultation services B2 RS iR AR TS 15 0.0 31 0.0
Prescription and dispensing BEEmE T Mid %

of medical products 509 0.1 508 0.4

Total revenue Al e 363,915 100.0 128,871 100.0

(i) Revenue from treatment services
Revenue from treatment services amounted to approximately
HK$289.1 million for the Year Under Review and approximately
HK$108.4 million for the Previous Year, representing 79.4%
and 84.1% of our total revenue, respectively. The increase of
approximately HK$180.7 million or 166.7% was primarily due to
2 new treatment centres has been opened during the Year
Under Review and the implementation of effective market
promotions which increase the public awareness of the brands.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Financial Review (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

(i) Revenue from sale of skin care products
Skin care products include cleanser, toner, serum, moisturiser,
eye care products, ultraviolet (UV) protection products and
masks under the new skin care product line XOVE, which
backed up by scientific research team in Switzerland.

Revenue from sale of skin care products amounted to
approximately HK$74.3 million for the Year Under Review and
approximately HK$19.9 million for the Previous Year,
representing 20.5% and 15.5% of our total revenue,
respectively. The increase of approximately HK$54.4 million, or
273.4%, was primarily due to 5 retail stores for the sale of skin
care products has been launched during the Year Under
Review.

(iii) Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical
products
Based on clients’ skin conditions, their specific needs and
requirements, our doctors may prescribe medication and/or
recommend certain skin care products which are dispensed at
our medical aesthetic centres.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical products
amounted to approximately HK$0.5 million for both Year Under
Review and Previous Year, representing 0.1% and 0.4% of our
total revenue, respectively.

Other income

Other income amounted to approximately HK$1.3 million for the Year
Under Review and HK$12.8 million for the Previous Year. The
decrease of approximately HK$11.5 million or 89.8% was primarily
due to approximately HK$9.6 million government subsidies received
in relation to Employment Support Scheme and other subsidy
scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund in Previous Year, whereas
there was approximately HK$0.6 million government subsidies
received during the Year Under Review.

Cost of inventories and consumables

Cost of inventories and consumables amounted to approximately
HK$29.0 million for the Year Under Review and HK$13.0 million for
the Previous Year, representing 8.0% and 10.1% of the total revenue,
respectively.

10 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2022

B AE R )

E1C )

(i) REHEHFERNKE
HEELEEERTNTTEK RN
W 2 @ R FIXOVE B 15 E 2655 2
S FEK BER - RRR - RIS
AR - RIMR UV EES RERE -

REBEEEREF  KEHEEEEE®D
MmN AEECTHE=TEBLR
H—FhENTEET  PAMEHEME
W 2 #920.5% % 15.5% ° 18 18 4 &
AFMHEETEETk273.4% T2 H
REDBEFEREAMEEEEERD
TEJEFTE o

(i) REBEERESRIEZNHKEZ

BREXPHNEMRR HEFTERE
R BB LEREEREEMES
R/ SEBERMEBERROEEN
ATHEEEmM -

REBEFEREF  REBEERERS
FREMRZHENAERATESBT 55l
EEHRMIBRRZER0.1% 2 0.4% ©

Hl A

REBFEREF EMBADHNAOR
—A=TBERILR T _BNTEET - BiE
WR—T—BRATEBILHE.8%  TEHRN
EFWBER [RUE] FAEEHRNEES
THEMEDAENBRTEDHONERTER
T MEESEERNRBAEOANTEE

<

3

FEREFERBEA
REBFERESF FERBERKASRIL
BZThEEELR—TZ88%T DL
#BULEER8.0% F10.1% o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Staff costs

Staff costs increased by approximately HK$54.4 million, or 76.7%,
from approximately HK$70.9 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$125.3 million for the Year Under Review. The
increase in staff costs during the Year Under Review was mainly
attributable to the increase in number of staffs due to 2 new treatment
centres and 5 retail stores for the sale of skin care products opened
during the Year Under Review and commission paid to doctors and
front-line staff whose incentive scheme tied to various key
performance indicators such as number of treatment conducted and
number of package sold.

Property rentals and related expenses

Property rentals and related expenses and depreciation of right-of-
use assets increased by approximately HK$27.4 million, or 129.2%,
from approximately HK$21.2 million for the Previous Year to HK$48.6
million for the Year Under Review. The increase was primarily due to
2 new treatment centres and 5 retail stores for the sale of skin care
products opened during the Year Under Review.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation expenses in relation to property, plant and equipment
increased by approximately HK$11.8 million, or 90.8%, from
approximately HK$13.0 million for the Previous Year to approximately
HK$24.8 million for the Year Under Review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Other expenses

Set forth below is a breakdown of our other expenses during the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021:

B[Ol EE (@)

Hibpak

HE2022F K 2021 F3 A31 HIEFEREAM
A EAMEHS AT

2022 2021

HK$°000 HK$’000 % change

FET FHAT BOLLEH

Credit card commission ERRAE® 8,658 3,611 139.8
Advertising and promotion expenses ~ E&E RHEER Y 47,829 12,303 288.8
Repair and maintenance fees HERREE 3,939 2,496 57.8
Professional fees HEXEH 4,494 3,613 24.4
Donations B/ 29 29 0.0
Consultancy fees ESE= 13,236 6,917 91.4

Loss on disposal of items of property, HEW - HERHBHEEH 2

plant and equipment, net 518558 3 269 (98.9)
Others Hith 24,996 8,738 186.1
103,184 37,976 171.7

Other expenses increased by approximately HK$65.2 million from
approximately HK$38.0 million for the Previous Year to approximately
HK$103.2 million for the Year Under Review. The increase was
primarily attributable to higher advertising expenses for the launch of
new promotions and active promotional campaigns mounted on
various social media platforms for the 2 new treatment centres and
increase the public awareness of the brands.

Finance costs

Finance cost increased by approximately HK$1.2 million from
approximately HK$1.8 million for the Previous Year to approximately
HK$3.0 million for Year Under Review.

Income tax

Income tax credit amounted to approximately HK$3.6 million for the
Previous Year and income tax expenses of approximately HK$5.8
million for the Year Under Review. The tax expense was primarily
attributable to profit during the Year Under Review.

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$25.4 million for the Year Under Review.

12 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2022

HtAXBEFHN =T \BEBETENLY
ANTHAA-_tEETZEBRFEL RS
ZEZTEET BRENEEHRRN AMER
MERET OES AL RERFRELTNE®E
FRIEBETEFEBARRES MENRTANE
EEBESFSIENM -

BB A
MBERABEFHN—BNTEETENGY
—HA-tTEATENBEFEHN=8EET

Frig®t

REF  MIBEREROB=ZBTEETL M
CEFEASKGEMEHRAIHABNTER
T FIEHAX I 2HNEBFEEEN G
PTER -

FREERN
ROBEFE ARAHERAEABEZENOR
“THRO+&ET -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Dividends

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend for the Year Under Review (2021: Nil).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a stable financial position with cash and
cash equivalents HK$65.7 million as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$161.8 million). Our working capital, excluding those lease liabilities
relating to properties leased for own use, was HK$35.1 million (2021:
HK$100.6 million). With our steady cash inflow from operations,
coupled with sufficient cash and bank balances, we have adequate
liquidity and financial resources to meet the working capital
requirements as well as to fund its budgeted expansion plans in the
next financial year.

As at 31 March 2022, most of our cash and bank balances were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, United State Dollar and Renminbi.

Cash Flow Analysis

The tables below sets forth the information as extracted from the
consolidated statement of cash flows of our Group for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021:

B
EFGYTRAXEROEFENETRE
(20214 : &) »

mEEe MMBEIR

BB EIR

B BRI - 12202243 A
STHMRENAEEFBYOR/TEELT
BIL(2021F : —BART—AN+EBET) -
B EE(TREEEEEERYEA
MNEERE) R=THAE —+&E (2021
F:—RBEATERERL  RERMELEE
BHREREAA - EREHNE S RIRITHE
g BMEBRANRBDES RIHER - A
ENZEESBFUARR T — M B EERENTE
BiERATE
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The Group'’s cash and cash equivalents were approximately HK$65.7
million as at 31 March 2022, as compared to approximately
HK$147.6 million as at 31 March 2021. The decrease was due to
capital expenditure incurred and deposit paid for the new treatment
centres and retail stores.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s net cash flows from
operating activities was approximately HK$44.0 million, representing
an increase of approximately HK$19.5 million as compared with the
year ended 31 March 2021. The increase was primarily attributable to
the implementation of effective market promotions, which increase
revenue from both treatment services and sale of skin care products.

Net Cash Flows Used In Investing Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s net cash flows used
in investing activities was approximately HK$97.5 million, which was
primarily attributable to capital expenditure incurred and deposit paid
for the new treatment centres and retail stores.

Net Cash Flows Used In Financing Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s net cash flows used
in a financing activity was approximately HK$28.7 million, represented
principal portion of lease payments during the Year Under Review in
relation to operating lease arrangements entered into by the Group.

Lease Liabilities
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had lease liabilities of approximately
HK$127.6 million (2021: approximately HK$42.5 million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2022, our Group had capital commitments in respect
of the acquisition of items of property, plant and equipment of
HK$340,000 (2021: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Year Under Review, the Group acquired items of plant and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$108.0 million (2021:
approximately HK$8.3 million).

Indebtedness

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

As at 31 March 2022, our Group had no outstanding interest-bearing
bank borrowings (2021: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 March 2022, our Group had no significant contingent
liabilities and guarantees (2021: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Indebtedness (Continued)

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2022, there was no charge on the assets of our
Group except for the time deposits of approximately HK$62.5 million
(2021: approximately HK$57.3 million) pledged for banking facilities
as security for credit card services programmes.

Gearing Ratio
As at 31 March 2022, our Group had no interest-bearing bank
borrowings (2021: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk

Our Group carries out its business mainly in Hong Kong and most of
its transactions are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. Our Group did
not experience any material impact or difficulties in liquidity on its
operations resulting from the fluctuation in exchange rate, and no
hedging transaction or forward contract arrangement was made by
the Group during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021.

Interest Rate Risk

Our Group has no significant interest rate risk. Our Group currently
does not have any specific policies in place to manage interest rate
risk and has not entered into any interest rate swap transactions to
mitigate interest rate risk, but will closely monitor related risk in the
future.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant investments
held by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022, nor
were there any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the reporting period. Save as
disclosed in this report, there is no plan authorised by the Board for
other material investments or additions of capital assets as at the
date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2022, our Group has a total of 366 employees (2021:
195). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, of our Group
were approximately HK$125.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2022 (2021: approximately HK$70.9 million). Remuneration is
determined with reference to factors such as comparable market
salaries and work performance, time commitment and responsibilities
of each individual. Employees are provided with relevant in-house
and/or external training from time to time. In addition to a basic salary,
year-end bonuses are offered to employees who performed
outstandingly to attract and retain eligible employees to contribute to
our Group.

Prospects

FY2022 remains challenging due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.
The Group temporarily closed its medical aesthetic centres between
7 January and 20 April 2022 in response to the government’s
pandemic preventive measures. During this period, we responded to
the situation in a timely manner by adjusting our operational strategies
and introducing operating cost control plans to alleviate the impact of
the pandemic and preventive measures on our business. Except for
the period of business suspension in FY2022, the Group’s business
maintained a rapid growth. After the situation stabilized and business
resumed, our business rebounded quickly and continued the strong
growth momentum seen before the suspension.

In FY2022, the Group recorded revenue over HK$360 million, hitting
a record high. However, the nearly three-month suspension of
business had a certain impact on the Group’s profitability. As a result,
the profit margin of the Year Under Review was lower than in Previous
Year and the normal level. To this end, we will review the Group’s
operational strategies and models on a regular and continuous basis
so as to maintain a reasonable and continuous rise in profit while
capitalising on the rapid growth of the industry and the Group under
the new normal.

As the core brand of the Group, excellent reputation and service
standards of CosMax+ enable us to capture the high growth of the
medical aesthetics services market. The CosMax+ medical aesthetic
centres further expanded its total service floor area in FY2022. The
optimised centre environment, in addition to a more spacious and
comfortable space, allows us to serve more customers and provide
consistently high-quality services. Moving forward, we will continue to
develop and introduce new treatment and service areas to further
enrich the experience of CosMax+ customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRD

Prospects (Continued)

In order to implement the vision of “balance, beauty and health” and
the belief that “inner health realises external beauty”, we developed
another business model based on the expertise and technology of
CosMax+, and launched our second treatment brand, VITAE. We
currently operate three VITAE treatment centres in prime locations.
We have also successfully rolled out the FaceGym concept, bringing
new elements to the traditional beauty services. While laying a solid
foundation for VITAE’s brand awareness, the concept has also
become a hot topic and benchmark in the market. The Group
expects VITAE to experience a period of high growth in the next few
years, which will not only effectively expand our business segments,
but also further consolidate the Group’s leading position in the high-
end medical aesthetics market.

In addition to treatment services, the Group also cares about the daily
skincare needs of its customers. XOVE, our skincare brand, offers a
range of high-quality skincare products that have undergone years of
research and development by a team of Swiss skincare specialists.
During the Year Under Review, we set up five retail stores in first-tier
shopping malls in Hong Kong and has been promoting its products
online through various platforms in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
In order to further improve the coverage of our service, in addition to
launching new retail stores in Hong Kong in FY2023, we will also
deepen and consolidate our presence in Mainland China by
leveraging our excellent market acceptance, established reputation
and popularity of our products. Furthermore, we are in discussion
with various shopping malls, retail operators and online platforms to
actively explore business opportunities in Mainland China and Hong
Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Prospects (Continued)

The Group is committed to delivering professional and personalised
services and providing effective and safe medical aesthetic solutions
and skin care products for customers, enabling them to reveal their
own unique and exquisite beauty. The Group advocates the amalgam
of inner and outer beauty, hence its concern and support for socially
responsible events that enable people to live their most stunning,
finest and enriching life. Although, the revenue and profit potential of
the existing and new medical aesthetics centres and retail stores was
not fully reflected in FY2022 due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.
Nevertheless, the opening of new service points serves as a
foundation for the Group’s future development and provides a driver
for revenue and profit growth. We believe that with the expansion of
the three brands, the Group will deliver an even better overall
business performance and achieve stronger economies of scale.

Despite the challenges we face in the economic cycle and the new
normal, the Group remains optimistic about the outlook. The demand
for medical aesthetic services remains strong and resilient, with a
higher growth rate expected in the coming years. The local economy
is recovering steadily as the COVID-19 pandemic stabilises and has
been contained. The medical aesthetics industry has seen a strong
rebound and the Group’s business continues to build on its previous
strong growth momentum.

The Group will continue to invest in research and development and
introduce new treatment services and products to enrich our business
and promote the development of the Group. We will also actively
explore local and overseas business opportunities, including
expanding our network and retail stores, aiming to expand our
business segments and extend our coverage, so as to reach a wider
and more diversified customer base. We are committed to
implementing these development plans, the results of which will help
boost the Group’s revenue and profit. This will also allow us to
maximise returns for shareholders and create long-term value for
stakeholders while maintaining steady business growth.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BEREHE

Executive Director

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Z3) (with former name Lai Chi, Gigi (32%)),
aged 50, is an executive Director, chairlady of the Board and chief
executive officer. She is also the chairlady of the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee. She is
responsible for the overall management, branding and strategic
planning, marketing and development of the Group. Ms. LAl Ka Yee
Gigi (“Mrs. Gigi Ma”) joined the Group in July 2009 and was appointed
as a Director on 6 July 2016, re-designated as an executive Director
and appointed as chairlady of the Board and the chief executive
officer on 19 December 2016. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Before founding the Group, Mrs. Gigi Ma was active in the fim and
television entertainment industry between 1985 and 2008. She
withdrew from the film and television entertainment industry in late
2008 and has since devoted her full effort to the development of the
business in the medical aesthetic service industry.

Mr. HO, Tsz Leung Lincoln ({1 ¥ %), aged 46, joined the Group in
July 2019 as the chief brand officer in which he has been responsible
for formulating and leading the Group’s brand strategies, as well as
overseeing the Group’s marketing and sales operations. Mr. Ho was
appointed as an executive Director on 22 April 2020 and promoted to
Chief Operation Officer effective at May 2020. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Ho worked in the role of art/creative director in a number
of advertising firms, namely DDB Worldwide, Leo Burnett etc., whose
clients included a world renowned international fast-food corporation,
personal skin care corporations, an automobile corporation and a
major transport corporation in Hong Kong. He has also contributed in
the film industry that earned him a nomination in The 24th Hong Kong
Film Awards in 2005.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2EREHE

Mr. Ho spent a decade at Neo Derm Group Ltd, a medical aesthetics
company, from 2006 to 2016 with his last position as marketing
communication director, and then worked in Airport Authority Hong
Kong in 2016 as assistant general manager in the retail and
advertising department. He rejoined Neo Derm Group Ltd from 2017
to 2019 with his last position as digital marketing director. He had
also worked for BTL Hong Kong Limited as regional marketing
director before joining the Group.

Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor of Arts in Design from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2002, as well as a Diploma in Design Studies
in 1999 from the same university.

Dr. LAM Ping Yan (%% &), 70, joined the Group in July 2020 as an
executive Director. He had been serving as a public officer for 34
years from 1978 to 2012. He commenced his career as a public
officer when he joined at the then Medical and Health Department
(now known as Department of Health) of Hong Kong in 1978 as a
Medical and Health Officer before being promoted to Senior Medical
and Health Officer in 1984, junior directorate officer (Principal Medical
Officer) of the Department of Health in 1989. He was appointed as
Chief Port Health Officer and Community Physician in 1993, Assistant
Director of Health in 1994, Deputy Director of Health in 1996 and
Director of Health in 2003. During Dr. Lam’s tenure as a public officer,
he had been involved in the prevention and control of severe acute
respiratory syndrome (SARS) and swine flu in Hong Kong as Deputy
Director of Health and Director of Health, respectively, before he
retired from his 34 years tenure as a public officer in 2012.

Dr. Lam played and continues to play an active role in the public
health community. He has been a life member of the Society of
Community Medicine and life associate member of the Hong Kong
AIDS Foundation, since 1990 and 1991, respectively. Between 1995
and 2013, he had served as a Justice of the Peace. He was a
member of the Council of Smoking and Health from 1996 to 2003.
Between 2001 and 2012, he was a member of the Medical Council of
Hong Kong. Between 2003 and June 2012, he served as (i)
Commissioner of Auxiliary Medical Service; (i) Chairman of Chinese
Medicines Board; (i) Chairman of International Advisory Board of
Hong Kong Chinese Materia Medica Standards; (iv) Chairman of
Pharmacy and Poisons Board; (v) Chairman of Radiation Board; (vi)
Member of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong; (vii) Member
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BEREHE

of the Chinese Medicine Practitioners Board; and (vii) Member of the
Hospital Authority Board. He has been an Honorary Professor of the
Department of Medicine and Therapeutics and School of Public
Health of the Chinese University of Hong Kong since 2004. Between
2004 and 2005, Dr. Lam was a Council member of the Hong Kong
College of Community Medicine. He was Deputy Chairman of Cancer
Coordinating Committee from 2006 to June 2012. Between 2008
and June 2012, he was the Vice Chairman of the Working Group on
Diet and Physical Activity and Steering Committee on Prevention and
Control of Non-Communicable Diseases. He was the Vice Chairman
of Working Group on Alcohol and Health and Working Group on
Injuries from 2009 to June 2012. On various occasions, he had
served as a temporary advisor to the World Health Organization
(“WHQO?”) on policy and strategy of development of traditional medicine
and control of non-communicable diseases. He served as Chairman
to the 2009/2010 Session of the Regional Committee Meeting of the
Western Pacific Region of WHO. Between 2010 and 2013, Dr. Lam
served as an Adviser of the Overseas Expert Consulting Committee
of the Ministry of Health of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for
Health Care Reform. In 2012, he was awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC. He was further awarded with the Cross-Strait
Contribution Award for Chinese in Tobacco Control by the Chinese
Association on Tobacco Control in the PRC in 2012. He was the
Principal Adviser (International Collaboration) of the National
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine of PRC between 2012
and 2017.

Dr. Lam graduated from the University of Hong Kong, faculty of
Medicine with his Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery in
1977. He further obtained his Master of Medicine degree in Public
Health from the National University of Singapore in 1992. He is also a
fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and a registered
specialist in community medicine.

EEBREME - B2004FH# - HABEFP
NRERR RENREZRARANLFEERE
BHIE - R2004FE 20055 - MBEABE
MHEBREERBEENE - KN2006F %
2012F6 AARESHEHREZEEIER - 1
2008 F E2012F 6 H ' B ARR LIEEEEE
TENEARIZEFEERREELZEGEIEE -
MR2009F £2012F 6 A - HAFKBERERET
BN RIBETIENABIERE - ERRSBE
BEEAEREEAL ((HEFDERERER
B2 IRV I JE{E R I A R BV R R BRI M ER
FAR - %% A2009 2010 fE & 7a A %R
HEEEEZER - R2010F £ 20134F + #K
EArw A AREAME ([HE])FEEIRL
EEEERNNE I EREAZTE TR -
2012 4F - R M R B A B R BITT IR BT 48
RIREMEE - N2012F - RiE—HEPH
R BT R E S R E I EE A EER
BIEEEE - R2012F 220176 HAFEEH
RAPEEEERNBEBREEEERER -

MEENI97T7TFABTEARERREXL E
REEE LB LI B LB - WK 1992
FE-SEFMNEETIASRE A HLFEESR
RT8 - WIREAEREN B+ kit
EREEMEMEL -

2022 Fif / SYEREEMBERAT 21



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2EREHE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David (Zf#§[El ), aged 73, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is
also a member of audit committee and nomination committee. Mr.
Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong in November
1975 with a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive
experience in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in the Shipfinance
Department of Credit Agricole CIB with effect from 1 May 2014 and
was the Senior Advisor to the Global Shipping Group of that bank
from June 2014 to June 2016. He was the Honorary Chairman of
Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited for 3 years from 2016. Credit
Agricole CIB and Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited are third
parties independent of the Company and not connected persons of
the Company. Mr. Cheng was a member of the Working Group on
Transportation under the Hong Kong Economic Development
Commission, a member of Hong Kong Maritime and Port Board, and
the chairman of the Promotion and External Relations Committee of
the Maritime and Port Board till March 2018. In May 2015, Mr. Cheng
was conferred the Distinction of “Chevalier de I’'Ordre National du
Mérite” by the French Government. Mr. Cheng has been an
independent non-executive director of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 716) since 1 November 2012 and the
independent non-executive director of Sincere Navigation Corp (T
A 38 B 19 B R A A1) which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
with effect from 28 June 2019. He is the Honorary Treasurer of the
Hong Kong Maritime Museum from 2016.

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo (ZBi#), aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is the chairman of
the audit and remuneration committees and a member of the
nomination committee. Mr. Cheng has been a member and fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since
December 1987 and August 1998 respectively and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
since January 1999, and a member and fellow of the Institute of
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Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada since November 1990
and December 2019. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years of experience in
auditing, finance and business management. He has been the sole
proprietor of Erik Cheng & Co., Certified Public Accountants in Hong
Kong since 1999.Mr. Cheng graduated from the University of Kent,
England with a Bachelor’'s degree in Accounting in July 1983 and a
Master’s degree in Accounting and Finance from the London School
of Economics, England in August 1984. Mr. Cheng currently acts as
an independent non-executive director of a number of companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, namely, CSI Properties Limited (Stock
Code: 497), Top Spring International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3688), Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (Stock Code: 194), Chia
Tai Enterprises International Limited (Stock Code: 3839), CPMC
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 906), Somerley Capital Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8439) and Kidsland International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 2122). Mr. Cheng currently act as an
independent non-executive director of Chong Hing Bank Limited,
which privatized on 30 September 2021 and C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd,
which privatized on 18 June 2022. Mr. Cheng retired as an
independent non-executive director of DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 620) with effect from 29
May 2020. Mr. Cheng resigned as an independent non-executive
director of C.P. Lotus Corporation which was delisted on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 121) with effect from 28
October 2019, resigned as an independent non-executive director of
HKC (Holdings) Limited which was delisted on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 190) with effect from 8 June 2021 and
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Goldbond
Group Holdings Limited which was delisted on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 172) with effect from 2 August 2021.
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Mr. LI Wai Kwan (Z{2%), aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is a member of the
audit committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Li has many years
of experience in accounting, finance and investment management.
Mr. Li is the chief financial officer of Crystal International Group
Limited (stock code: 2232), which is principally engaged in
manufacturing of fashion products since November 2018, while he is
responsible for finance matters for that group. From March 2005 to
September 2006, he worked for Esprit Holdings Limited, which is
listed on the Main Board (stock code: 330) and principally engaged in
manufacturing, retail and wholesale distribution of fashion products,
and he served as a vice president of operational finance and a vice
president of finance in Asia Pacific region, while he was responsible
for finance and operational matters. From October 2006 to
September 2010, he was a vice president of COFCO China Agri-
Industries Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main Board (stock
code: 606) and principally engaged in trading on agricultural raw
materials, manufacturing and distributing food products, while he was
responsible for finance, investment and company secretarial matters.
Mr. Li was a managing director and director of the board of COFCO
Agricultural Industrial Investment Fund Management Company
Limited, which is principally engaged in asset management, from
September 2010 to October 2011, and he was responsible for
managing overall business and investment matters. Mr. Li was a
managing director of Origo Partners PLC, whose shares are listed on
the London Stock Exchange and principal business is private equity
investment, from November 2011 to January 2013, and he was
responsible for investment matters. Mr. Li was the chief financial
officer of Zhuhai Dahenggin Company Limited and its affiliate Zhuhai
Dahenggin Property Company Limited, which is principally engaged
in primary land development, real estate development, theme park
construction and operation, city operational management, and asset
management in Henggin Free Trade Zone, from August 2013 to
October 2018, while he was responsible for finance, investment and
fund management matters.
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Mr. Li is a director, executive committee member and honorary
treasurer of the Hong Kong — ASEAN Economic Cooperation
Foundation since 2015, an Honorary President of the Institute of
Certified Management Accountants — Hong Kong & Macau Branch
since 2018, a Chairman of Institute of Public Accountants — Hong
Kong Branch since 2019, a Committee member, SME committee of
ACCA — Hong Kong Branch since 2019, and a General Committee
member and Chairman of Professional Education and Training
Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies since
2020.

Mr. Li was the chairman of Investor Relations Committee of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies from 2008 to 2010, the
honorary vice chairman of China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility
Association (Overseas) in 2009, the chairman of Partnership and
Promotion Committee of the Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association from 2009 to 2010, a member of the Organising
Committee of Directors of the Year Awards 2010 organised by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2010, a committee member of the
PRC committee of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity
Association in 2011, a committee member of Public Awareness
Committee of Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts in 2016, and a
board member of Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada —
Hong Kong Chapter from 2017 to 2020. Mr. Li was a member of
Finance Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority from 2010
to 2012. Mr. Li was the guest lecturer of the Macau University of
Science and Technology in 2016.

Mr. Li graduated from University of Toronto in Canada with a bachelor
of commerce degree with distinction in November 1995. He further
obtained a master of business administration degree from Schulich
School of Business, York University in Canada in November 1996.
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Mr. Li was admitted as a member of the Institute of Certified
Management Accountants in August 2000, a chartered financial
analyst of the Chartered Financial Analysts Institute in September
2001, a certified general accountant of the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada in October 2002, a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in October 2004, a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in May 2005, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2008, a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April
2010, a chartered professional accountant of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Canada in June 2015,
a member of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association in
December 2015, a fellow of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants in April 2016, a member of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute in August 2016, a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2018, a fellow of
the Institute of Public Accountants in July 2019, a fellow of the
Institute of Financial Accountants in July 2019, a business and finance
professional of the Institute of Chartered Accountant in England &
Wales in December 2019, and a member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association in December 2019.

Mr. Li is the independent non-executive director of K W Nelson
Interior Design and Constructing Group Limited (stock code: 8411)
since 18 November 2016. Mr. Li was the independent non-executive
director of China Asia Valley Group Limited (formerly known as China
Graphene Group Limited) (stock code: 63) from 1 February 2018 to
30 November 2018, the independent non-executive director of China
Greenfresh Group Company Limited (stock code: 6183) from 20 July
2018 to 5 June 2020, the independent non-executive director of
Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1808) from 27
April 2017 to 12 October 2020 and the independent non-executive
director of TL Natural Gas Holdings Limited (stock code: 8536) from
18 May 2018 to 30 September 2021.

Note: The Group’s business are under the direct responsibility of the above executive
Directors who are the senior management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Code

The Group recognises the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully committed to doing so. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business
risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability
and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2022,
the Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG Code, except the deviation stipulated below.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Under the current management
structure of the Company, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (“Mrs. Gigi Ma”) is the
chairlady of the Board (the “Chairlady”) and chief executive officer of
the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”). As Mrs. Gigi Ma has
been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer and
sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the establishment of
the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi Ma acting as the
Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more effective management
and planning of the Group. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is acceptable and
appropriate in the circumstances and currently does not propose to
separate the functions of chairman and the chief executive officer.

Since 1 January 2022, certain amendments to the CG Code has
come into effect and the requirements under the revised CG Code
will apply to all listed issuers for financial years commencing on or
after January 1, 2022. The Board will continue to review and enhance
the corporate governance practice of the Company to ensure
compliance with the revised CG Code and align itself with the latest
developments.
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Compliance of Code of Conduct for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Having made specific
enquiries to all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by
the Company during the Year Under Review.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

During the year and up to the date of this report, the composition of
the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
(“Mrs. Gigi Ma”)

Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln

Dr. Lam Ping Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David

Mr. Li Wai Kwan

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has complied
with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least 3 independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) representing
more than one-third of the Board and at least one of the INEDs must
have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All INEDs also meet the guidelines
for assessment of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Each of the INEDs makes an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of that view that all the INEDs meet the independence
guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 19 to 26 of this annual report.

Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer. As Mrs. Gigi
Ma has been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive
Officer and sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the
establishment of the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi
Ma acting as the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more
effective management and planning of the Group. Therefore, the
Board considers that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code is acceptable and appropriate in the circumstances and
currently does not propose to separate the functions of chairman and
the chief executive officer.

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer who is
responsible for overall management, branding and strategic, planning,
marketing and development of our Group. She also is a member of
remuneration committee and chairing the Nomination Committee.

Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes controlling resources allocation of the Company and
leading the Company to strive for success. It oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management
and performances. The management team is delegated with the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of
the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board to the management include (1) the preparation of interim
and annual reports and announcements for the Board’s approval
before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures; and (3) compliance with
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the
appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures
are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.
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Board/Board Committee Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s interim and annual results. Four
regular board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2022 and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is
set out on page 30 of this report. At the Board meeting held on 24
June 2022, the Board has approved, among other matters, the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to
Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
Directors for their comment before being tabled at the next Board
meeting for approval. The minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

EEXg EEZEE2E

EETe SRR NiREBEBRERAA
B2 BB RMBERE - WEMRIERA RN
FHINFEESE - REE2022F3H318LE
FEEETHRTOAZEES SR  MSERD
FEECEREZBRHENEARELIE - 1
2022F6 A4 BRI ESEEER L EF
SEAE (KR BE) AR R REWE A RRE
£2022F 3 A3 BIEFE ZEEZEE B
]k o

BEEHRTIETESRNRPELRE
NEBRAIELZHEZEREHF - A ESEREM
HEHTRmERAAZREZA - REMEBHE
FEBSHZRE  UNEMEERRAIER
fl- ELE—MNEFTSETENRTAMAE
LZHREETEFENERESTEXN - &
EERERNERCHRURENREET —RE
RN EMEMEARESERM  WHKE
REBR - @@ cHBARRWEFE - A H
EREERL GBS EREA QR
&R -

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HE/ BTERAY
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual
Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EHZEE HMZEe ReZEe S
Ezees E S EE BEXE
Executive Directors HiTES

Mrs. Gigi Ma SRAmE L 4/4 - 11 11 11
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln ERSryika 4/4 - - - /1
Dr. Lam Ping Yan HERELE 4/4 - - - 11

Independent Non-Executive Directors BV FEHTES
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David BaEE ks 4/4 2/2 - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BEMEE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FEERE 4/4 2/2 11 - 11
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Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of Members after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company received from the Directors the
following records of the training attended during the year ended 31
March 2022.
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Nature of Trainings

EIEE
Type 1 Type 2
£18 %28

Executive Directors HITES
Mrs. Gigi Ma HBERINm 2+ 4
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln Al FseitE 4
Dr. Lam Ping Yan MERBEEAE v/ v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAKHTES
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo &R AN ST A& v/ v
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David B [ 5 A 4 v
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FRELLE v
Type of trainings: IR
1. Reading materials. 1. BIEM KL
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars. 2. HEEIRE g% w8 TEY el g -

Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board, which include (a) develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries; (c) review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the corporate
governance report of the Company required to be prepared pursuant
to the Listing Rules; and (f) consider, review and decide any other
topics, as authorised by the Board. During the year, the Board
reviewed and discussed the corporate governance policy of the
Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference following the Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the
Listing Rules and the CG Code. The audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) is authorised to commit Company funds in
order to obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants,
investigatory services or other expert advice. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Fu
Kwok David, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Li Wai Kwan and Mr. Cheng
Yuk Wo is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
March 2022 and the meeting was attended by the Company’s
external auditor so that the members of the Audit Committee could
exchange their views and concerns on the financial reporting process
of the Group with the auditor.

During the Year Under Review, the Audit Committee had reviewed
with the management and the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal controls, and financial reporting matters including
the following:

° the review of the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021;

° the review of the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2021;

° the recommendation to the Board for the proposal for re-
appointment of the external auditor of the Company and
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

o the review of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out on
page 30 of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee has been established by the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
following the Rules 3.25 to Rules 3.26 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code and the majority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs and responsible to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Mrs. Gigi Ma and two INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and
Mr. Li Wai Kwan. Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 March 2022 with the presence of all committee members. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration packages and performance
bonuses for the Directors and senior management of the Company
and assessed performance of executive Directors.

The Group’s businesses are under the direct responsibility of the
above executive Directors who are the senior management of the
Company. Details of the amount of Directors’” emoluments for the
year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference following the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for, amongst other things, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, considering
the reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for
Directors and making recommendations to the Board in respect of
the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority and responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mrs. Gigi Ma and two INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David and
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo. Mrs. Gigi Ma is the chairlady of the Nomination
Committee.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 March 2022 with the presence of all committee members. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board and board diversity
policy, discussed matters regarding the retirement and re-election of
Directors and succession planning for directors and assessment of
the independence of INEDs. The Nomination Committee concluded
that members of the Board have possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board’s functions and responsibilities.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of
appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection criteria used in
assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, such
candidate’s academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity etc.

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the nomination committee reviews
the structure, size and composition of the Board periodically and
make recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. When it is necessary
to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an additional director, the
nomination committee identifies or selects candidates as
recommended to the committee pursuant to the criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy. Based upon the recommendation of the
nomination committee, the Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment. In addition, every director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation or re-election at least once every three years and shall be
eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting. The nomination
committee shall review the overall contribution and service to the
Company, expertise and professional qualifications of the retiring
directors, who offered himself/herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting, to determine whether such director continues to
meet the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against selection criteria.
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For selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board taking into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time and with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board’s composition will
be disclosed in the annual report of the Company. The Board will give
adequate consideration to this policy when it identifies suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
amongst them, three are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also characterized
by significant diversity, regardless in terms of age, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy
had been met.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to implement
the Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. At present, the Board has not set any
measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness.

Dividend Policy

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, dividends may be paid
out of the profits of the Company, or subject to solvency of the
Company, out of sums standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors of the Company.
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Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Directors of the Company,
depending on results of operations, working capital, financial position,
future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other
factors which the Directors of the Company may consider relevant
from time to time. Any future declaration, recommendation and
payment of dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the
historical declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the
absolute discretion of the Directors of the Company. The Company
does not have any predetermined dividend payout ratio.

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements on an on-going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
with a view to ensure that such financial statement gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of the results and
cash flows for the financial year. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board has selected
appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects. The interim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a timely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The responsibility of the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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Auditor’'s Remuneration
During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young is
set out as follows:

Services rendered

il
RAFER - B/ BN TRAREHBEH
ZBeRIImT -

Fee paid/payable

FriR 4 AR 7% e ENER
HK$'000

FHIT

Audit services % B RS 1,700
Non-audit services IEL ER TS 474

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board
oversees the overall risk management of the Group and endeavours
to identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been developed with the following features and processes:

(@  The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and
considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of
the risk assessment; and determines the risk management
strategies and internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal
control processes are in place; revises the risk management
strategies and internal control processes in case of any
significant change of situation; and reports the results of risk
monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

(b)  The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are summarised as follows:

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information used within the business or for publication;
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside information
are strictly prohibited; and to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is currently
of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of
the Group’s business. Nevertheless the Company engaged an
external professional firm to carry out internal audit functions. It was
decided that the Board would be directly responsible for internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external professional firm as its risk
management and internal control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to
conduct the annual review of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2022. Such review is
conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The
scope of review was previously determined and approved by the
Board. The Adviser has reported to the Audit Committee and
management for findings and areas for improvement, if any. The
Board and Audit Committee are of the view that there are no material
internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser
are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.

[ B B 2R I FE R ﬁ%IE% KA
B - AREREBEENABETERE
Fr RMIEREREREBE - EFTER
BERELAMELERF - RAEEE
EFeTHERRRERNER

b) REBREERANBEERG R EHER

(N

AEBECHEEERF EEREEE
\%WWW&ﬁE'ﬁ%%?EW%
B MARB  MRZERE SR
Bk LA AT 52 %%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁt
NRER - BRBARE L REEER K
MARNGER  REHEREREM -
BRIMFFITRIRHEIERE

ARENEN DB - MERNEBETS
ZHRE - ERERNE ERARBUENE

SRR AR EE R - AT - A
ARIEER—BSNPEEBBE T RBELE

b AARATEEEBEEEEAKEL R

EBEHT - R AR -

EEEC TR A/ EERBETCHERRE
BRAMEERTBER(BERD ASEE
2022 F3ABNAILFENRARERE RANEE
EREFETFEMR o ZIBRF FFHEITIAK
RETBREZ - R HBERACRESEHE]
kEd - BREREZEZEg REEERERE
REFLCE(NB) 8k - EEEREREE
eRE Iﬂﬁﬁixmﬁﬁ$ﬁ% REE
HiEE RS % WHERNAER
AL EHIT © l% ﬁ%éﬁﬁ [ =it
RABEERSFBERARRE -

2022 Fif / EPEREBEEFRAT 39



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERBWE

Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information
about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure
of Inside Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information. With
those guidelines and procedures, the Group has management
controls in place to ensure that potential inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the
Board to decide about the need for disclosure.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
Company secretarial service and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its
Company Secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of HKICPA and has over 25
years of experience in the field of company secretarial services. Mr.
Lo has confirmed that for the Year Under Review, he has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. Mr. Lo is not an
employee of our Group and he is responsible for advisory to the
Group on corporate governance matters. Mr. Gordon Leung, our
finance director, is the person who Mr. Lo can contact for the
purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the Code.

Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and to put forward proposal at general meetings.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Article 85 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
no person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as
a Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written
notice must state that person’s biographical details as required by
Rule 13.51 of Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholder of the
Company to propose a person for election as director is posted on
the Company’s website.

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing by post at 18/F, Nan Fung Tower, 88 Connaught
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company shall forward the
Shareholder(s)’ enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant
Board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond to
the Shareholder(s)’ enquiries.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company communicates with its Shareholders and investors
through various means. Timely publication of interim and annual
results announcements on the latest development
of the Company and press release on the Company’s website
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk could make the Shareholders appraise the
Company’s financial position. Shareholders are highly required to pay
attention to these public information. Holding of an annual general
meeting could provide an effective forum for the Shareholders to
share their views with the Board. At the annual general meeting held
in 2021, separate resolutions were proposed by the chairman in
respect of each separate, including re-election of directors and voted
by way of poll. The Company announced the results of the poll in the
manner prescribed under the Listing Rules. The respective chairman
of the Board, audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee had attended the annual general meeting held
in 2021 to ensure effective communication with shareholders. All the
Directors had attended the annual general meeting held in 2021.

Investor Relations

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the
investor relations department (email address: miricor@sprg.com.hk).
The management always provides prompt responses to any such
enquiries.

Constitutional Documents

The Company has published its memorandum of association and the
Articles on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the year, no amendments were made to the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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About this Report

Introduction

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited is delighted to publish its annual
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (“ESG Report”), demonstrating our continuous
commitment to corporate social responsibility. The Group recognises
the importance of sustainable development. Sustainability is crucial
for the Group’s growth in order to achieve business excellence and
enhance long-term competitiveness. The Group has established and
implemented various policies to manage and monitor our significant
ESG-related risks. Details of the management approaches to
sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in this ESG
Report.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the period from 1
April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (“reporting period”). It includes
disclosure of significant environmental and social impacts of our
Group.

Reporting Scope

Our ESG Report mainly covers subsidiaries of the Group in Hong
Kong which are principally engaged in the provision of medical
aesthetic services and the sale of skin care products accounting for
approximately 96% of the Group total revenue for the year ended 31
March 2022. The Group will continue to optimise and improve the
coverage of disclosure in this ESG Report.
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About this Report (Continued)

Reporting Basis

This ESG Report was prepared in accordance to the ESG Guide set
out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The Group has complied with
the disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the ESG Guide. During the process of preparation of this ESG
Report, we summarized the Group’s performance in corporate and
social responsibilities based on the principles of “Materiality,

BN E=E )

WG EE

B - B REARE IRIE LRI
OTFIHMIEY HEREAEDIRE - AEE
RSB - EREAESI PR [ TETH
PR | EXMBERTE - EREANEE e
REAREMBIER  RMRBESH - 2
b~ FER—FME | ORA - BT AEEE

Quantitative, Balance and Consistency”. Please refer to the table
below for our understanding and response to such reporting

principles.
Reporting Principles Definitions
HWERA b S

CERPHEEETENRE - F2HTRAT
RIBMIHZFHRE RO K@ E -

Our Response

e pl:v]E

Materiality

BEM

Quantitative

E1t

Balance

Fi

Consistency

— 2t

The issues covered in this ESG Report
should reflect the significant impacts of the
Group on the economy, environment and
society, or the scope of assessments and
decisions of stakeholders being affected.
RRE MG REAREMBENZERR
MAEEHLHE RERTENEATE
SN EX BN L SORKEE -

The ESG Report should disclose key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) in a
measurable manner.

AR - HEREAREBARTET AR
BRERGENER ((BREMER]) -

The ESG Report should reflect fairly the
overall sustainability performance of the
Group.

AR - HEREEME AT RRAEE
MERAHEERERE -

The Group should use consistent disclosure
principles for the preparation of the ESG
Report.

REEEER —BOERERNGRERE -+

gRERRE -
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Through continuous communication with
stakeholders, combined with the Group’s
strategic development and business
operations, we can identify current material
sustainable development issues.
FRP/FBEEPFNERR  HEAEED
RIS R R REEE - ROTAEBE A
MEBERAIFEERES

The Group quantitatively discloses its
environmental and social KPIs, and provides
textual explanations on quantitative
resources.
REESMEBEAIRERIT S@HRE
MR - WL E(LBIRIBH X FRE -

The Group has explained in detail the
sustainable development issues that have a
significant impact in the business, including
the results achieved and the challenges it
faces.
AEBECDFRARENEBEEATED
ARHEERZE  BEMIUSHERR
PR EREY DR EK

The Group will ensure that the disclosure
scope and reporting methods of the ESG
Report are generally consistent every year.
AEEBBRERE L REBRREH
BEREHELRESARBFRBURFF—
o
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About this Report (Continued)

Source of Information

The information disclosed in this ESG Report is derived from the
Group’s formal documents, statistics or public information. The Board
is responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its
contents.

Access to the Report

The ESG Report is available in Chinese and English versions. In case
of any discrepancy between the Chinese and English versions of the
ESG Report, the English version shall prevail. You may access the
Group’s official website at www.miricor.com or the website of the
Stock Exchange at http://www.hkex.com.hk for an electronic copy of
the ESG Report.

Sustainability Governance

The Group has established an ESG framework to promote and
implement the Group’s sustainability strategy. To ensure effective
ESG management, our ESG governance structure, composed of the
Board, ESG working group, respective functional departments and
subordinate companies, was established to promote ESG
management and disclosure. The Board, the ultimate decision-
making body of the Group, is responsible for the Group’s ESG
governance. The Board steers the Group’s sustainable development
forward and bears the overall responsibility of its ESG efforts. In the
future, the Board will continue to strengthen ESG risk management
and improve ESG working mechanism and regulatory processes to
enhance its ESG governance standard. The ESG working group,
serving on the supervision and coordination level, is responsible for
implementing ESG governance strategy, coordinating ESG matters,
compiling ESG reports, and reporting relevant work progress to the
Board on a regular basis. Each functional department and
subordinate company, serving on the execution level, is responsible
for rolling out initiatives set up by the ESG working group and
reporting relevant work progress and data.
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About this Report (Continued) PR A S (&)
Sustainability Governance (Continued) AEEERER(E)
( N\ ( N\
Decision-making level _ The Board
REE " Exg
. J . i J
e . A ' A
SUP.e rvision Eile ESG working group
guideline level W . e RS TN
EERISHE s mEEEs !
. J . i J
( N\ ( N\

Functional departments

Execution level . .
and subordinate companies

\ 4

AR BAHFIR T AT
|\ J |\ J
Stakeholders Engagement E¥HhESHE

Stakeholders engagement is essential to the formulation of strategies I E AIHFEERE B RN BEEAENTSHELXHE
for sustainable development. It allows the Group to understand risks 5 EREE THRES LK ES - KEFD %R
and opportunities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are  Z H X B HE - BEHRBRPINES LRET
important to our business and established various channels for ZREBETHEE -

communication.
Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
& HE SHERE £t
Government Comply with laws and pay Exchange of Operated, managed and paid taxes
proper tax payments correspondences, relevant  according to laws and regulations,
meetings and information  strengthened safety management;
disclosure accepted government’s supervision,
inspection and evaluation.
BT BPEOIRZEHNTIE BAER  HESERE BREBEADIRMAOIKE BB RANT
(NEN BHE ER B MRLR2ER EXBNEE &
B Mt o
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About this Report (Continued)
Stakeholders Engagement (Continued)

Stakeholder
B E

Expectation

M

RS 8)

BOESHEE)
Engagement channel Measures
SERE Eici

Shareholders and
Investors

BRREEE

Employees

il
il

Customers

Provide high transparency
for information disclosure

and protect shareholder’s
rights and interest

EMEREREHSERE
VA B2 R B2 P SRAE M) B A

Maintain a safe and
respectful workplace,
including equal
opportunities as well as
health and safety

HRZEREENTHES
- BT ERE KR
Y &

Provide safe, high-quality
products and services to
customers

AEFPREZE  BEH
7 i M R 75

Annual reports, interim
reports and
announcements

Annual general meeting
and other shareholder
meetings

Fih - PHBERLS

RGBS RE R AMABR

EE

Training and briefing
sessions, employee
feedback mechanism, and
fair mechanism for
employment and
promotion
Bk ERE  EERE
IS T 8 ;3 4: 0N
S 1l

Customer satisfaction
surveys, customer
feedback activities, day to
day operations/
communications, service
and product complaints
and response mechanisms
BEPMERAEL  BPRE
EE) - BREE B
PR 75 K2 E ¥R A K [0 FE A
il

Disclosed company’s information by
publishing annual reports, interim reports
and announcements.

Issued notices of general meeting and
proposed resolutions according to
regulations.

FRTEFR  PHRERAERER
FEH o

HERA G B E RRIBERPIIE 2 RE

o

s

Provided training to employees; provided
employment and promotion practices that
do not discriminate on grounds of gender,
disability, pregnancy, family status, race,
colour, religion, age or other conditions
recognized in law.

REBRMIE  RETBRMLER - B
R-EZ2 RERR BR - BEE R
- FliReRHMERTANBERAZER
REFER

Strengthened quality management to
ensure safety, high quality production and
communicate with customers to improve
quality of services.

REEERNERELE BELE
WEREFEBANERBEE -
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About this Report (Continued)

Materiality Assessment

The Group attaches importance to the materiality assessment of ESG
issues for the purpose of timely and comprehensive understanding of
the materiality of each ESG issue to the business development of the
Group and the expectation of stakeholders, in order to facilitate the
Group’s effective disclosure of ESG information and continuous
improvement in the management level of relevant issues. The
materiality assessment on ESG issues of the Group during the
reporting period covers the following steps:

Step 1 The Group identified the following 21 issues in
accordance with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide and based on the business
characteristics and daily operation of the Group. These
issues are considered to have impacts on the
environment and the society during our operation.

Step 2 Based on the understanding of the demands and
expectations of stakeholder during the daily operation,
the Group determined the materiality of ESG issues by
benchmarking the key points and the trend of ESG
works of industry peers.

Step 3 Based on the result of the materiality assessment, the
Group discussed and determined the key disclosure of
the ESG Report for the reporting period and the key
points for improvement in the future ESG work of the
Group.
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About this Report (Continued) PR A S (&)
Materiality Assessment (Continued) BEEMTEGLE)
Social Aspects Environmental Aspects
HEEE BREH

1. Equal opportunity | 5. Prevention of child |9. Complaint handling | 13. Community 14. Exhaust emissions | 18. Water
TEke labor and forced IR investment BERBERR consumption

labor HEHE FEKE
BIEET K%
T

2. Employment and |6. Selection and 10. Protection of 15. Greenhouse gas | 19. Paper and
employee evaluation of intellectual property emissions packaging
benefits suppliers rights BEREHEN materials
EEREEREA BERAMEER | REMEER consumption

RN BEMEE
#

3. Occupational . Control and 11. Customer data 16. Waste 20. Management of
health and safety management on privacy and data management risks associated
REREHRZ2 environmental and security BENER with Environmental

social risks along EFEBARRR and Natural

the supply chain 2 Resources
EERER R ERBERANRE
RERE R ERE RIERER

b

4. Employee . Product and 12. Anti-corruption and 17. Energy 21. Climate change
development and service quality money laundering consumption RIRE(
training EmkREER REFRERE BERERE
EE R A

According to the results of materiality assessment, 5 material topics

(note) are regarded as the most concerned issues of stakeholder and

the Group. While taking into account environmental and social

responsibilities, the Group will pay more attention to the above areas,

and strive to achieve continuous improvement and sustainable

RIBFEZEFFEHER  sEZEEHE (HE)
WRAFNERAEEZHEINEE - EER
REMMEEENRE - AEEBENET
MR - B BRISELCE R AR ARG

E‘&o

business development.

Note: Presented in bold. B5E - LAKEBE 27 -
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Environmental Aspects

Emissions

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable development
and compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection, the Group endeavors to minimise the environmental
impact of the business activities and maintain green operations and
green office practices.

The Group has established system to ensure environmental
compliance. It seeks to optimise its production by adopting low
energy consumption and environmental pollution techniques and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the employees through
regular trainings. The management team has the overall responsibility
for environmental protection matters within the Group. The
management team reviews the Group’s environmental compliance on
a regular basis. The Group was in strict compliance with related
environmental laws and regulation, including but not limited to Waste
Disposal Ordinance. The Group was not subject to any environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions during the
reporting period.

In the daily operation of the Group, the major emissions are clinical
wastes and the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) incurred by the purchased
energy resources. Clinical wastes generated by the operations can be
divided into two categories. Category A includes syringes, needles,
cartridges and other sharp instruments which have been used or
which have become contaminated. Category B includes surgical
dressings, swabs dribbling with blood, caked with blood or containing
free-flowing blood. Clinical wastes collection box is placed in each
doctor’s room. Category A waste is collected in Sharps Collector.
Once it is filled up, it must be covered and wait for recycle. Category
B waste is collected in red biochemical wastes plastic bags. All
wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger for record.
Quiallified clinical waste recycling companies are engaged to perform
waste disposal and treatment so as to minimize the impact on the
nature. During the reporting period, the total amount of clinical wastes
recycled by qualified clinical waste recycling companies is 108 kg
(2021: 76 kg).
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group manages the carbon footprint by minimizing the energy
consumption and water consumptions as these activities cause
significant emission of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures
adopted on resources saving are mentioned in the section “Use of
Resources” of this ESG Report.

Major air pollutants emissions from vehicles during the reporting
period as follows:

RIBEE (#)

B ()

ANEEE B TRONERACE R ERIE - I
BRI - DERZEEPRRARLER
o L ERRANIE R F RN RS
5 e RERRE [BRER] —5F -

R ERE E@WERNEEER)TEDN
T

Air Pollutant Emissions RSN
Air Pollutant Air Pollutant 22555544 ZRERY  ERFEY
Type of Air Pollutants Emission (kg) Emission (kg) b= g (FR) BEhE(FR)
2022 2021 2022 & 2021
Sulphur Dioxide 0.02 0.02 —&ti 0.02 0.02
Nitrogen Oxides 0.61 0.68 RE/W 0.61 0.68
Particulate Matter 0.05 005  BFHTF 0.05 0.05

During the reporting period, the GHG emissions from the operation is
set out below:

GHG Emissions
Equivalent CO, Equivalent CO,

Type of GHG emissions emission (kg) emission (kg)

2022 2021
Scope 1 Direct emissions 4,579.00 4,595.24
Scope 2 Indirect emissions 242,745.05 204,245.11
Total 247,324.05 208,840.35
Intensity 35.99 kg/m? 67.78 kg/m?
Note:

The calculation of the greenhouse gas is based on the “Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from greenhouse gas protocol and the “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX.

Scope 1:  Direct emissions from vehicles that are owned by the Group

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by
the Group

Scope 3 s not disclosed as it is an optional disclosure and the corresponding emission
is not controlled by the Group

R AT - B KR = R AR U
o :

BEREERY

BERE “EtHREE ZERER
HRmER HHE(TR) HHE(TR)

2022 2021
HENEREN 4579.00 4,595.24
HE2HEHEN 242 745.05 204,245.11
st 247,324.05 208,840.35
BE 3599T %/ Fhxk 67.78T%,/FH*

REREDREBEEERERTEN (DX RMEER]
KR ETRME IR SRR - G RERRE — Mk
= RERRAERUERERIES A E -

HET: RAARBEBRENERIEEIN

BE2: RAKREEEFRENINEE N TEEZMEER

HBES: FEEEENE B MR B IE A S E S W
i34
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environment, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources,
including energy such as minimize waste streams and emissions and
implement effective recycling program. The Group also adopted
“Environmental Office Practices” in order to use resource more
efficiently. Some of the key measures are as follows:

Energy consumption by the Group during the reporting period is set

RIBEE (#)

&R A

MAEBMEBE  RERTEREIFEE -
REEHARSLRERAE RN RER -
a0 BE 37 R HE e B R A R B 3 3
et ) o AEBEIRA [BRPASHER] - S
FAMKMBEAER - £ T X EHBOT -

REHRE - AEEFTERZEREATINT

out below:
Energy Consumption EAGNEE:
Energy consumed Energy consumed ERERE ERERE
Type of energy (kWh) (kwh)  BRER (TRE) (TRE)
2022 2021 2022 2021
Unleaded petrol 16,388.10 16,446.25 EL§pa: 16,388.10 16,446.25
Purchased electricity 382,625.00 272,366.00 INEE N 382,625.00 272,366.00
Total 399,013.10 288,812.25 Mt 399,013.10 288,812.25
Energy intensity 58.06 kWh/m? 93.73 KWh/m? fREE 5806 TRE/THX RI3TRE/TFAX
Paper Saving B4 4K

In office, we encourage the employee to use both sides of paper and
use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to minimise pages, if possible.
Besides, use electronic media is recommended for circulation/
communication, to minimize using paper (e.g. without unnecessary
cover page and fax). During the reporting period, the total amount of
recycled paper disposed at landfills is 1,302 kg (2021: 1,344 kg).

Water Conservation

Employee should report leaking faucet or pipe to the relevant authority
and turn off the tap when not in use. During the reporting period, the
total consumption of the water and water intensity per employee is
95.96 m® and 0.01 m%m? , respectively (2021: 66.00 m® and 0.03
m3/m?2).

52 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2022

BB EENHATE A EmAMRER
BETERN)D/WEER UBEESERESR
Ko pboh BRERESFERBAEEH 8
o UEABREERE (I TERATHE
MEMBEREE) ARMEHR - ZBBRHIE
B HIRFEKLEE H1,302F 7 (2021 F -
1,344 F53) »

A K

& B FEm BRI ERP M S /KEEEK B ERAK - I
M AR RIS KEETE - R HART - Ak
HEERREZEEFENRKRED B A
95.9637 77 K K2 0.01 32 75 K /S 752K (2021 4F -
66.0037 /5K & 0.033 J5 K,/ F oK) -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS - HERERBRE

Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Electricity Conservation

The electrical appliance should be set as energy saving mode where
possible. For computers, the idle automatically mode is 20 minutes or
less. The set room temperature should be set in a range from 20°C to
25.5°C. The ideal optimal temperature is 25.5°C. Also, switch off
unnecessary lighting and power supply should be switched off when
they are not in use.

Green Pantry

Employee are encouraged to use reusable cutleries, cups and
glasses and use environmental friendly cleaning products (e.g.
biodegradable or phosphate free detergent, refillable soap, etc.).

Packaging Material

The major packaging material used in our business are mainly paper
and plastic bottle. The consumption of those material during the
reporting period is summarized below:
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Packaging Material Consumption BEMEERE
Packaging material Amount (kg) Amount (kg) aEHE HEE(TR) HEE(TR)
2022 2021 2022 F 20214
Paper 88,347.10 3,434.60 ok 88,347.10 3,434.60
Plastic bottle 94,961.01 11,059.04 3l 94,961.01 11,059.04

In view of our continuous effort, we target to maintain zero substantial
non-compliance case in relation to the emission of exhaust gases,
GHG, non-hazardous clinical waste, energy consumption and water
consumption in coming five years.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

The Environment and Natural Resources

According to the Group’s “Environmental, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group raises staff’'s awareness of environmental issues through
education and training and enlist their support in improving our
performance, promote environmental awareness amongst our
customers, business partners and shareholders and support
community activities in relation to environmental protection and
sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and present
business activities impacting upon health, safety and environmental
matters. With the integration of policies mentioned in sessions
“Emissions” and “Use of Resource”, the Group is allowed to minimize
the impacts to the environment and natural resources.

Climate Change

The Group is committed to mitigating the climate change and
enhancing its resilience to adapt to the increasing threat of climate-
related consequences.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
(including significant climate-related issues) by the Group are
summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and considers
the impact and consequence on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the
risk assessment; and determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Climate Change (Continued)

Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal control
processes are in place; revises the risk management strategies and
internal control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and reports the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.

As a result of above risk management process, physical risk and
transitions risks arising from climate change may not bring significant
impacts to the Group’s business. As a supporter of the
recommendations of the Taskforce on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosure (TCFD), the Group has assessed the potential climate
related risks and identified the rising mean temperature and increasing
severity and likelihood of extreme weather events such as rainstorms,
floods, fire and heatwaves as major physical risks impacting our daily
operation.

The Group’s ESG working group is responsible for identifying and
assessing any climate-related risks to which the Group’s operations
are exposed, and updating the Board with the latest news and
developments on climate regulations and industry benchmark. In
order to cope with climate-related risk, the Group implemented
various emergency response mechanism and purchase adequate
insurance against natural disasters so as to cope with extreme
weather.

In the future, we will continue to identify potential business activities
impacting the environment and develop corresponding improvement
measures, so as to further prevent the possible negative impacts of
our operation on climate change.

RIBEE (#)

RIREL (2)

AMERRHRE  BERTHETRARESR
WPRRBEEENNBERRF - RIERHE
EOEN L CRN e L Y

B REMREEENEESRERARER
GOk

MR B ERERRE  RIRBCELENTR
B M @R R Al RE N SRR B X E L
EXTE - (FRRIRIERRM %5 5 W TFAE

(TCFD)Z#E M X FiE - AEBCHHEERIK
MARREE - XA TFIORIR BT RER - KA

K e BOR B Ao R SR B A RO BRE M I AT REME
ENBNATERMATZENTIRERE

o8 o
2

AEENRE  HERELRTENEATRET
Ko w0 7 6% 8] 2 5E P e 0 1 {70 SRR AE B R
- YREESRHABRIBERRITEEE
MR ERER - REERIEARERR - K
SEERSERSHES  ABERMHBRL
ERER - A E SR RR o

AR BT AEE R T EIRIRBHEEE
EZ j’I%UEﬁ}EE’]EﬁZi? I AE— IR
g EHRRECAREEENAEPE

2022 3R/ SYEREEER AT 55



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS- HERERBRE

Social Aspects

Employment and Labour Practice

Employment

The Group considers human resources as its most important asset,
employees are encouraged to invest in career growth where the
Group provides on-the-job training, and further education supports
that enhance their professional knowledge and skills, thus improving
the overall calibre of its workforce. In addition, the Group also
evaluates employee performance on a regular basis and recognises
and rewards outstanding employees. The Group has established and
implemented “Staff Handbook”, which contains the policies relating to
human resources, covering areas such as compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare.

The remuneration package of our employees includes basic salary,
commission and discretionary performance bonus. In order to
incentivise our staff for their contribution to improve our business
performance, we have formulated an incentive scheme for certain
front-line employees with their commission linked to the amount of
sales of our services and products. We offer a fixed commission rate
which applies uniformly across all services and products we offer,
including the sales of one-off treatment, prepaid packages and skin
care products.

It is our objective to provide equality of opportunity for all staff in
relation to all human resources matters. We shall recognize and
reward meritorious performance and provide equal opportunity of
employment irrespective of sex, age, marital status, race, religion,
disability or employment status. The principle of equal opportunities is
applied in all employment policies, in particular to recruitment,
training, career development and promotion of employees. If
employee is treated unequally in the workplace, he/she can report to
the supervisors.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Further, we offer welfare and benefits for all our employees to foster
their loyalty to our Group. For examples, employee can enjoy discount
for treatment and products in our company. Basically, every rule in
the handbook is set in accordance with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to Employment Ordinance. With
our efforts made on regulation, no case of violation against the labour
rules occurred during the reporting period. The Group will continue to
strive to comply with the relevant laws and regulations.

Below is a detailed breakdown of our employees by gender, age
group, employment type and geographical region as at 31 March
2022:

MHEEEE)

EERLEITERE)

E% (&)

B R ARMIFTEESIREEN R
BHARSHAEEORNE  HINEETEX
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RARH) o
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2022 2022
Number HEANE
of staff % of total BT A ALt
By gender iR E o
Male 25 7 s 25 6
Female 341 93 pegs 351 94
Total 366 100 #&E 366 100
By age group RERARE S
30 or below 149 4 30 EIA T 149 41
31-40 137 37 31-407%% 137 37
41-50 53 15 41-50 5% 53 15
51 or above 27 7 51 BRak A 27 7
Total 366 100 Bt 366 100
By employment type RERERE S
Contract or short term 15 4 & #)3k%e B 15 4
Full-time 351 96 28 351 96
Total 366 100 #8&E 366 100
By geographical region &t E & 5
Hong Kong 341 93% B 341 93%
The PRC 25 7% =8 25 7%
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Below is a detailed breakdown of our employee turnover rate by
gender, age group and geographical region during the reporting
period:

HEEEE)

BERLEITEEE)
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2022 2022
Turnover rate by gender BI85 B K =R
Male 50% S 50%
Female 29% ey 29%
Turnover rate by age group BRERARE D HRAE
30 or below 37% 308K AT 37%
31-40 27% 31-407% 27%
41-50 15% 41-50 5% 15%
51 or above 44% 51 BRak A 44%
Turnover rate by geographical region RibEE DR AER
Hong Kong 30% BaH 30%

There were total 104 employees left the Group during the reporting
period.

Health and Safety

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environmental Health and Safety Policy”,
no job is so important and no service so urgent, that we cannot take
time to perform our work safely, and in an environmentally
conscientious manner. The Group strives to provide staff with a safe
and healthy work environment and develop a safety awareness
among employees and others engaged in work, so that accidents
(personal injuries and property damage) and occupational illnesses
will be reduced to a minimum. In order to raise employees’ awareness
in maintaining health and safety issues, the Group offers safety
training programs and hazards measurement programs. Besides,
safety equipment is provided to the employees. Also, it is the
responsibility for the Group to identify and control safety, public
health, and environmental hazards associated with their operations
and work constructively with government agencies and others to
develop and implement laws, regulations, and standards to protect
public health, safety, and the environment.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Group was in strict compliance with
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and during each of the
past three years including the reporting period, no material work-
related fatalities and lost days due to work injury was recorded.

Development and Training

The Group believes that providing training to our staff is also an
important factor in attracting and retaining employees. The Group
aims to facilitate personal and professional development enabling
individuals and groups to achieve their full potential at work according
to the Group’s “Staff Training and Development Policy”.

The Group is committed to provide professional trainings to our
trained therapists in order to provide quality services to our clients.
QOur trainings included both theoretical and practical trainings and our
training program has been specifically formulated by our doctors and
training manager. We provide on the job training to strengthen the
quality of our trainings offered to our staff. We are of the view that the
ability to keep abreast of the latest trend in medical aesthetic services
and to offer quality service will impact our client traffic, revenue
growth and financial performance.

From time to time, our doctors attend industry conferences, seminars
and workshops in Hong Kong and overseas as well as seminars
organised by our suppliers on topics such as injection procedures
and energy-based procedures.

We require our newly recruited therapists to undergo a six-month
training programme provided by us prior to performing treatments as
agreed by the doctors for our clients.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

In recognition of our achievement in manpower training and
development and in fostering an organisational culture conducive to
life-long learning, we were awarded under the ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme and Caring Company Logo during the
reporting period.

Below is a detailed breakdown of the percentage of employees
trained by gender and employment category during the reporting
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period:

2022 2022
Trained employee by gender EMERESNZIES
Female 100% 7 100%
Trained employee by employment category REEEREINZIEE
Contract or short term Nil A #9358 =Y pisia
Normal 100% —H& 100%
Middle 33% A% 33%
Senior 29% =A% 29%
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

The average training hours for employees by gender and employment
category during the reporting period as follows:

MHEEEE)

EERLEITERE)

BEREY(E)

FASRAE HART R M B B AR R 815 (0B B 1

Sl Ean T

2022 2022 F
The average training hours for Hours per BHRE s NEEFRY BHEE
employees by gender employee Z oI BEFE =3
Female 225.01 2% 225.01
The average training hours for employees REFERESNEEF
by employment category FAIRFE
Contract or short term Nil S %SE= i
Normal 245.61 — & 245.61
Middle 0.71 A 0.71
Senior 0.36 =24k 0.36
Labour Standards 3|

According to “No Child Labour Policy”, the Group does not employ
any person below the age of eighteen years at the workplace and
prohibits the use of child labour and forced or compulsory labour at
all its units. No employee is made to work against his/her will or work
as bonded/forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment or
coercion of any type related to work. Employment contracts and
other records, documenting all relevant details of the employees,
including age, are maintained at all units and are open to verification
by any authorised personnel or relevant statutory body. The unit
provides an annual report to the functional head on any incidents of
child or forced labour. Periodic assessment is conducted. The human
resources department undertakes random checks of records
annually.

During the reporting period, the Group complied with the Employment
Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and did not
violated any relevant labour laws and regulations including child and
forced labour laws and regulations.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established “Procurement Policy and Guide to
Procedures” which aims to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations and appropriate social practices governing our
businesses, provide suppliers with equal opportunities for transactions
with the Group; and promote procurement activities based on mutual
understanding and trust. In order to manage the environmental or
social risks in the supply chain, we have strengthen the control in
procurement of treatment devices/consumables and skin care
products as below.

Treatment devices/treatment consumables

We place great emphasis on ensuring that treatment devices to be
introduced for use in our medical aesthetic centres are reliable and
capable of delivering desired results for our clients. To this end, we
have established policies and procedures to evaluate and assess
treatment devices. Our marketing and business development
department is primarily responsible for keeping abreast of the latest
technologies and conducting market research on the latest and
prevailing treatment technologies and skin care products. Periodic
meetings are held among our management, doctors and marketing
and business development department to discuss the latest
technologies and skin care products, during which our marketing and
business development department may recommend the types of
treatment devices to procure. From time to time, suppliers of
treatment devices visit us and demonstrate their treatment devices to
us, which may also provide us with a trial period during which we can
evaluate and assess the use and effectiveness of the treatment
devices.

When deciding whether to procure a new treatment device, we take
into account factors such as (i) whether it is approved by national
government agencies such as the Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) and/or whether such devices bear CE mark(s); (i) whether there
are similar devices on the market; (i) whether it is complementary to
our existing treatment offerings; (iv) whether it is accredited with
certification and qualification related to environmental protection; and
(v) our internal test results. The approval of our chief executive officer
and doctors must be obtained before we procure a new treatment
device.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Skin care products

The skin care products offered by us are supplied by manufacturers,
all of which are Independent Third Parties. The countries of origin of
our skin care products include Switzerland and France. We select
and source skin care products carefully based on factors such as the
suppliers’ background, credentials and reputation, product quality
and cost. The approval of our chief executive officer and laboratory
technician must be obtained before we take in any new product for
sale.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to offering an excellent customer experience
and ensuring that our products and services are safe and high quality.
We adhere to applicable laws regulating health and safety standards,
as well as those governing testing, advertising and labeling. The
Group was in strict compliance with related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Trade Description Ordinance, Consumer
Goods Safety Ordinance and Consumer Goods Safety Regulation
during the reporting period. Our aim is for our customers to have
confidence in our products and services, and sufficient information to
make informed choices. Therefore, the Group has a set of policies
and procedures to oversee and manage issues related to
responsibilities of our products and services.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance

Providing quality non-surgical medical aesthetic services is one of our
management priorities. We have adopted comprehensive and
stringent quality assurance and control measures throughout our
business processes that covers, among others, the following aspects:

Recruitment of professional staff

In selecting new doctors and therapists to join us, we assess, among
others, their academic and professional qualifications, years of
relevant experience as well as their character and integrity.

Performance of consultation and treatments

The carrying out of consultation services that involve the practice of
medicine, medical diagnosis, prescription of pharmaceutical products
and medicines (each as defined under the Pharmacy and Poisons
Ordinance (Chapter 138 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) and certain
types of treatments (such as injection of botulinum toxin type A and
dermal fillers) constitute the practice of medicine and therefore must
be carried out by registered medical practitioners pursuant to the
Medical Registration Ordinance (Chapter 151 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Our doctors carry out consultation services and such certain
treatment procedures which are specified under the relevant laws and
regulations as well as selective treatment procedures perceived by
our doctors as being high risk, whereas our trained therapists perform
other selective treatment procedures as directed by our doctors.
Based on our doctors’ professional experience and judgment on the
risk of severe complication, selective energy-based procedures are
performed by doctors only if there is potential risk of irreversible organ
or tissue damage including nerve injury, muscle burn, fat necrosis or
skin necrosis.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance (Continued)

Standard operation procedures and clear division of labour

We implemented standard operation procedures at our medical
aesthetic centres and a clear division of labour to improve operational
and administrative efficiency and enhance the quality of our services.
Our doctors (assisted by medical assistants) and trained therapists
are mainly responsible for performing treatments while our aesthetic
service specialists are mainly responsible for sales and promotion. To
monitor our client’s satisfaction towards the treatment received, we
contact the client within several days after the treatment by phone or
text message to gather his/her feedback. We maintain a log book on
feedback for management review. Such internal structure and well
defined responsibilities are established for the purpose of segregating
the powers of operations, sales and client service to achieve effective
check and balance.

Intellectual Property Rights

We operate our business under the brand name “CosMax+”, “VITAE”
and “XOVE”, which we believe embodies our established reputation
for quality services and products. We believe that our intellectual
property rights are critical to our continued success. We primarily rely
on laws and regulations on trademarks and trade secrets and our
employees’ and third parties’ contractual commitments to
confidentiality to protect our intellectual property rights.

The Group’s research and development department is the
department responsible for the work related to intellectual property
rights, responsible for the acquisition, modification, renewal, licensing,
pledge, transfer, logout, and monitoring of intellectual property of all
units including trademarks, functional variable names, copyrights,
patents, responsible for guiding, supervising, and managing the
intellectual property rights maintenance and rights protection and
anti-counterfeiting of all units. The Group regularly conducts
intellectual property rights business training for relevant staff of various
units to enhance employees’ awareness of intellectual property rights
protection. The research and development department conducts
random inspections on the management of intellectual property rights
of various units from time to time.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Intellectual Property Rights (Continued)

Besides, the Group also requires our staff to endeavor to guarantee
and develop intellectual property rights of the Group while totally
respect legal intellectual property rights of third parties. In addition,
the Group would also sign confidentiality agreement and competition
prohibition agreement with its staff and suppliers to prevent the
infringement of intellectual property rights. Employees who are
suspected of violating relevant rules of intellectual property rights of
the Group shall be under investigation and the Group would take
appropriate actions to this.

Customer Data Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and privacy is
the key principle for operation. We comply with Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance. According to the Group’s Staff Handbook,
employee is required protect all the customers’ information.
Information only can be used in authorized business activities. If
employee disclose those information to other parties, it is considered
as data theft. The related employee’s employment will be terminated
and report to police for prosecution.

During the year, there was no products sold/service provided subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons and no material complaints
about our products and services received.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Anti-Corruption

In the Group’s “Staff Handbook”, one of the most important rules that
the Group requires all members of staff to observe is that they must
maintain honesty, refuse corruption, refuse to accept kickbacks, and
they must not misappropriate the Group’s funds and properties, must
not abuse power for own interests, and that all gifts received must be
handed to the Group.

The Group shall strive to protect and uphold Group’s and our own
reputation, professionalism and integrity. To this end, we shall avoid
obligations to customers or business associates resulting from
advantages, gifts or entertainment received in or due to our official
capacity which could compromise our position in any way or be
perceived by a third party to potentially compromise ourselves or the
Group. When we participate in any social or academic activities,
either in a personal or official capacity, we shall avoid any unbecoming
acts which will bring us or the Group into disrepute.

Employees could whistle-blow to the supervisor for the suspected
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering issues by email.
Information of the whistleblower is confidential. Once discovered and
confirmed, related personnel will be published or his/her employment
will be terminated. The Group will be report to Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) or other institution depends
on the cases.

The Group was in strict compliance with Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance and there was no any legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees during reporting
period.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Community

Community Investment

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate.
The Group has adopted “Community Investment Policy”, it aims to
establish a comprehensive system to oversee the activities related to
community investment. The Group strives to develop long-term
relationship with our stakeholders and seek to make contributions to

programmes that have a positive impact on community development.

The Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
HK$159,840 during the reporting period (2021: HK$29,000). Besides,
the Group had also contributed to the sustainable development of the
community by serving with care and concern for the underprivileged
through the activities during the reporting period as follows:

° Joining Dress Pink Day and made donation to the Hong Kong
Cancer Fund
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o Promoting limited pink edition of XOVE product for donation to HWEXOVEMAEEERER © MEBE
the Hong Kong Cancer Fund EESERH
° Joining the charity walk and made donation to the Hong Kong 2NEEFLTTIREEEESEHEE
Federation of Handicapped Youth =
The following is resources contributed for the above mentioned LA R A& EIE A i EEFAIEHE &R
activities during the reporting period as follows:
2022 2022 F
Total amount of donation HKD 159,840 BREE BT 159,840
Total number of hours for hour 501 R ERERG /|NBF 501
providing voluntary EoEGHSE
services
Total number of staff person 364 SR A 364
involved for providing ERERFH
voluntary services BT 1%
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide

EBHA XS ARA AINER -

e REamEES

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE - -EFEH —REERBRERES E=4:1]
A.  Environmental
IRIE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BHEAT: HER)
General Disclosure Emissions
—Re R HER
KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
FRERIEER  BEMEE KA BB - HER
Al.1
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Emissions
emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity.
FRENIER EHEEE1) REREZ(EE2)AETRBENNER(WER)BE - BE)
Al1.2
KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. The Group generated no

MRERESR ARERBAFHREN WER)TE -
A1.3

significant hazardous waste

during the reporting period.

REBMP RS AL EAESL
BEREEREED -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. Recycled paper disposed at

RRENIESR MELEREERERVEER (WER)TE -

landfills — Use of Resources
ZENHIERAIRRA

Al.4 — BRER
KPI' A1.5 Description of emission targets set and steps taken to achieve them. Use of Resources
BRETUER HOET VBN EEERAEIEL B EMEIMA LR o BiR A

A1.5
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Guide (Continued)

S ER A RHIRE -
wEES| (@)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE - -EFEH —REERBERERES E=4:0]
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Emissions
and a description of reduction targets set and steps taken to achieve
them.
MRERIER HHEEEEREZEEMNGE  REMPTEIZHRRE B SRR RE BER)
A1.6 F 5L B IRPTEREREY 2P 5R, o
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BT A2 : BR{EA
General Disclosure Use of Resources
—MRIKER EiR{EE A
KPI A2.1 Direct and indirect energy consumption by type in total. Use of Resources
FRERIEER RELNISNEERBAZERRERES - EiR{EE A
A2.1
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of Resources
BRBEUIER BRKERTBE - EREA
A2.2
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency and a description of targets set and Use of Resources
steps taken to achieve them.
BB IETR  RLBLIR(E A e M PR RT A2 80 B IR R RE BSE Lk B AR PR RN 2 EiR{EE A
A2.3 5 o
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for Use of Resources

RS UIETR
A2.4

KPI A2.5

RARERIER
A2.5

purpose, water efficiency and a description of targets set and steps
taken to achieve them.

F U SKERGE AR 7KR AT B R R - F7kREs Ko
RIEDE L B IR RA R -

AFTRTALED B AR K&

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.

HRmABEEMHNEENR (WER) BEESBMULE -
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHER - -EFEH —REERBEARERES E=4:0]
Aspect A3: The Environmental and Natural Resources
[ETE A3 : RERRAER
General Disclosure The Environmental and
Natural Resources
—MRIREE RIERRRER
KPI AB.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment Emissions & Use of
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Resources
FRERIER HHERIDHHRERRABERNEAZERERKRNEEE@LEDN HER K &R
A3.1 178 o
Aspect A4: Climate Change
EAS : RIxEL
General Disclosure Climate Change
—MRIKER RIREL
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Climate Change
impacted, and those which may impact the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.
FRENIER HADERAESEHETAEATENEARBGIEBEE - REHRR RIERE
A4 EREETENTH -

2022 %4 / SYBREMARAT 71



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RS- HERERBRE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s ERBE R
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting HEhER

Guide (Continued)

ZPAERARIIERE -

WwEIES| (8)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section

TEHE - -EFEH —REERBERERES E=4:0]

B.  Social

e

Employment and Labour Practices

EBRERBIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EB1 : B
General Disclosure Employment
— MR 1B 1%

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Employment
geographical region.

MRERIEER  1RIER - EERE  FRANERISNIESER - (=

B1.1

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Employment

BREBUER  RIER - FRARI KRB S HEERKLE =2

B1.2

Aspect B2: Health and safety

AEB2 : fEREZT S
General Disclosure Health and safety
— R EE fERREZ 2

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past Health and safety
three years including the reporting year.

BRGENIER RBT=ZEFE(BERSFRE)SFEEATIFARMIETHABR fERRERZ 2

B2.1 LK o

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and safety

FRERIEER BEIBEXANIERS - EEET S

B2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how Health and safety
they are implemented and monitored.

FRERIEER WP RELT 21 - ARBBERITRERFE - RREEZ S

B2.3
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section

TEHER - -EFEH —REERBEARERES E=4:0]

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EMEBS : B a5
General Disclosure Development and Training
—RRHE R R

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained by gender and employee category.  Development and Training

FRERIER RUEREBEESNZIEEBTDL R R

B3.1

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Development and Training
employee category.

FRERIER KRUERIREEERE D  BRES KX THRE - ELEYSe=El

B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

E B4 : BT A
General Disclosure Labour Standards
— BB 45 T s

KPIB 4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child Labour Standards
and forced labour.

BRBENIER MR BB EE AR RE T KRGS T - 5 T AR

B 4.1

KPIB 4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Labour Standards

FRASUER IR ERIE R ER A BB TR 5 - 25 TAE8

B4.2
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs

IREE -BFH - —REBERBEENER

Section
=4

Operating Practices

EEEY
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
EB5 : HrEgE R
General Disclosure Supply Chain Management
— R EE HrEgEE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by region. In light of our result of
materiality assessment, such
KPIs is considered as not
material and thus not
disclosed.
BRGEIIER RS HHEEREE - ENBPIN B ML
B5.1 R ZEAREBIRFEER
RTIEZ  FAREE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number of Supply Chain Management
supplies where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
MRERUER WO BHEAHERNEN  RERTERBMNEEREE - UKk HregEE R
B5.2 HERITRERTTE -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks ~ Supply Chain Management
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BRGENIER HAEERRIEEESERGRE R ERRNED - ARIBER HrEgEEe
B5.3 TRERTE-
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable Supply Chain Management
products and services when selecting suppliers, how they are
implemented and monitored.
BRGENIER HOAEBEHERRREZARRERLRENED - ARIEBEART HrEgEEe
B5.4 NERTE
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AR ARMIRE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE  EBEEH- - —REBERBREENER =8
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
A B6 : EmAaf
General Disclosure Product Responsibility
—RRHE Emaf
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety Product Responsibility

RAREIEIR
B6.1

KPI B6.2

RS RIS
B6.2

KPI B6.3

RASRAE AR AR

B6.3

KPI B6.4

RARERIER
B6.4

KPI B6.5

RASR AR IR AR
B6.5

and health reasons.

EEXCEZXERAHTRAR2BEREHMARDENEDL -

Number of products and service related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.
R E on MR TS VIR AR 8 B A MBS 5 0% -

Description and practices relating to observing and protecting

intellectual property rights.

T B v L ARIE F R EHE R RAROIE ) -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures .

s S B2 M EmEIEFF -

Description of customer data protection and privacy policies, how they
are implemented and monitored.

W E B E ERMRERALRBOR - U RBETRERTE -

Emaff —

it

EmAl

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Product Responsibility
— Intellectual Property
Rights
EmAE — MHBER

Product Responsibility
— Quality Assurance
EmAE - BERTE

Product Responsibility
— Customer Data
Information Protection

RIZ
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHE - -EFEH —REERBERERES E=4:0]
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
HB7 : RES
General Disclosure Anti-corruption
—MRIKER R&A
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Anti-corruption

against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the case.

FRENIEER RBREHNEBTANEREREYEEANE SHFARGEE KF R&3F
B7.1 EACE S
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, Anti-corruption
how they are implemented and monitored.
BRENIEE A SEEERERER  ARBEBRTRERTE - k&S
B7.2
KPIB7.2 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Such KPls is not available in

the reporting period due to
first time adoption, the
Group will continue to
improve such disclosure.

BRENEE  WRMEERE TRHENRASEY - A B ERAR - R A
B7.2 ot T AR ¢ A PR R
2 REEg S EREE

95 -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section

TEHER - -EFEH —REERBEARERES E=4:0]

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[ETHBS : HERRE
General Disclosure Community Investment
—MRIKER HERE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, Community Investment
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

BRGENIER ZIERESE(WHE REFHE HIHTK - @R - 8F)- HERKRE

B8.1

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Community Investment

MRERIER CHISHBMSHAER (NS ENERHE) - HRKE

B8.2
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 6 July 2016 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
medical aesthetic services and sale of skin care products.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 18 of
this annual report which forms part of this report of the directors.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s business. The following
are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.

Government Policies Risk

Following certain adverse incidents in relation to the beauty service
industry in recent years, the Hong Kong Government has been
reviewing the existing legal framework and considering tightening its
supervision over the beauty service industry by promulgating certain
laws and regulations to regulate, among other things, the types of
medical aesthetic procedures that should be performed by registered
medical practitioners. See “Regulatory Overview — Recent
Development in relation to Regulation of Medical Procedures and
Beauty Services, as well as Private Healthcare Facilities” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2016 for further
details.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

There is no assurance that the Hong Kong Government will not
impose more stringent laws, rules, regulations or industry standards
in connection with the provision of medical aesthetic services. Any
change in the regulatory framework may render it more restrictive for
us to conduct our business. There is also no assurance that we will
be able to adapt to such changes in a timely manner. In addition,
compliance with such new laws, rules, regulations or industry
standards may significantly increase our operating costs, which may
in turn lower our profit margins. Any of the above-mentioned
circumstances may materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Risk of Adverse Economic, Social or Political Conditions
Our business operations are mainly based in and we derive most of
our revenue from Hong Kong. Our business operations and the
demand for our medical aesthetic services and the sale of skin care
products are therefore subject to the economic, social and political
conditions in Hong Kong. Furthermore, any incidence of social unrest,
strike, riot, civil disturbance or disobedience in Hong Kong may cause
inconvenience to clients who wish to visit our medical aesthetic
centres and weaken their desire or willingness to undergo medical
aesthetic treatments. Any of the above circumstances may have a
material and adverse impact on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

In addition, in the past years, a portion of our revenue was derived
from visitors and tourists from the PRC who do not reside in Hong
Kong. Any reduction in the spending willingness of such PRC visitors
and tourists and any decrease in the number of PRC visitors and
tourists to Hong Kong as a result of anti-mainland sentiment may
significantly reduce our revenue derived from such clients, which
could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental protection
measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of resources.
These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental policies and
performance can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 43 to 77 of this annual report.
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Compliance with the Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 March 2022 and up
to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material
breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the
date of this report.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff, customers and suppliers are
the key to our sustainable and stable development. We are
committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
99 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held on
Friday, 23 September 2022. A notice convening the meeting will be
issued and sent to the Shareholders in due course.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 20
September 2022 to Friday, 23 September 2022, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong* for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 19 September 2022.

With effect from 15 August 2022, Tricor Investor Services Limited will change its
address to 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 180. The summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2022, in the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of
the Company available for distribution to shareholders under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$59,207,000
(2021: HK$58,390,000).

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$29,000 (2021: HK$29,000).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2022, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole shareholder
of the Company by way of written resolutions passed on 19 December
2016 for a term of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2022.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save for the Share Options Scheme, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
(“Mrs. Gigi Ma”)

Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln

Dr. LAM Ping Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. LI Wai Kwan

By virtue of article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln and Mr. LI Wai Kwan will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and will being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to the Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Board considers them to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of 3 years and continuing thereafter until
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of 3 years, provided that either the Company or
the INEDs may terminate such appointment at any time by giving at
least three months’ notice in writing to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Emolument Policy

We have established the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters,
including benefits in kind and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management, after consultation with the
chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer.

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will consider factors such as corporate and individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Other than operating a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the Group has not
operated any other retirement benefit schemes for its employees.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the Group
amounted to HK$4,705,000 (2021: HK$2,248,000) for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors from any liabilities and costs arising from the
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors and officers
liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its Directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

Biographical Details of Directors
Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 19 to 26 of
the annual report.
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Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2022, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the
Directors, the controlling shareholders and substantial shareholders,
neither themselves nor their respective associates (as defined under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules) had held any position or had interest in
any businesses or companies that were or might be directly or
indirectly competing with the business of the Group, or gave rise to
any concern regarding conflict of interest.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporation

As at 31 March 2022, interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follow:

a. Long positions in shares of the Company:
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a. REQRRDGHFE:

Percentage of

the Company’s
Number of issued
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held share capital
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EEHA B g sl M & A BANE DL
Mrs. Gigi Ma Interest of a controlled 275,000,000 68.75%
corporation (Note 1)
BRI A2+ =A@ s (FHFE1)
Note: BiRE -
1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright 1. 5% 275,000,000 M A% {7 LA e 242 iR B TR A 7

Group Holdings Limited (“Sunny Bright”), a company beneficially owned as
to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Ma Ting Keung, Patrick (“Mr.
Patrick Ma”). Mr. Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma. Therefore, Mrs.
Gigi Ma is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Sunny Bright
under the SFO.
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b. Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

b. RAEBEEROHNFE

Percentage of

the Company’s
Name of associated Capacity/nature of Number of issued
Name of Director corporation interest shares held share capital
AKAR BT
EEHE AR L B = B nttE FEROEE RANEIE
Mrs. Gigi Ma Sunny Bright Beneficial owner and 2 100%
interest of spouse
BRI+ e EnlEE AR BER

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of 1 issued ordinary
share of Sunny Bright, representing 50% of the issued share capital
of Sunny Bright. Mr. Patrick Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of
the other 1 issued ordinary share of Sunny Bright, representing the
remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Sunny Bright. As Mr.
Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma, Mrs. Gigi Ma is deemed to
be interested in all the interest registered in Mr. Patrick Ma’s name in
Sunny Bright. Accordingly, together with the 50% shareholding
interest in Sunny Bright registered in Mrs. Gigi Ma’s name, Mrs. Gigi
Ma is taken to be interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Sunny Bright.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or (i)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of

the Company

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the person
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) or
company which were required to be recorded in the register required

to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follow:

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2022, other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the following
persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the shares or
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or required to be recorded in the register of the Company

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company:
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Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

shares held/ issued

Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested share capital
=Y To] AATREEIT
wE S EB B1ip RmtE ERNBRHEE RAENE DL
Sunny Bright Beneficial Owner 275,000,000 68.75%
HF EnEBA
Mr. Patrick Ma Interest in a controlled corporation 275,000,000 68.75%
and interest of spouse (Note 1)
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Meitu, Inc. Beneficial Owner 20,000,000 5%
EJENS EnEEA
Notes: B5E -
1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright, a company 1. % 275,000,000 A% A& 179 A SE 3 (— 8 i1 5 2R AN 22 =

beneficially owned as to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Patrick Ma. Mrs.
Gigi Ma is the spouse of Mr. Patrick Ma. Accordingly, Mr. Patrick Ma is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Sunny Bright under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022 and so far as known
to the Directors, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or
any Associated Corporation” above, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers
For the year ended 31 March 2022, the percentage of revenue
derived from our five largest clients in aggregate was less than 1.6%
(2021: 1.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, purchases from our largest
supplier accounted for approximately 15.9% (2021: 31.1%) of the
Group’s total purchases. For the year ended 31 March 2022, our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 39.1%
(2021: 64.1%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers or customers.
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Connected Transactions

The “related party transactions” as disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
do not constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

There were no other non-exempt connected and continuing
connected transactions during the reporting period.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float required by
the Listing Rules in the reporting period.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 December
2016, pursuant to the non-competition undertakings set out in the
deed of non-competition dated 19 December 2016, each of our
controlling shareholders, namely, Sunny Bright Group Holdings
Limited, Mrs. Gigi Ma and Mr. Patrick Ma (collectively the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have undertaken to the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) that, amongst other things, each of them
does not or will not, and will procure each of their respective close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate in, be
engaged, interested directly or indirectly, either for their own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of or for any other person in any
business in competition with or similar to or is likely to be in
competition with the business of the Group upon the Listing of the
Company. Details of the deed of non-competition are set out in the
paragraph headed “Non-Competition Deed” in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 December 2016.

The INEDs have reviewed the implementation of the deed of non-
competition and are of the view that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with their undertakings given under the deed of non-
competition for the year ended 31 March 2022.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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Equity-Linked Agreements
Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
27 1o 42 of the annual report.

Events after the Reporting Period

There was no significant event occurred after the reporting period.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
LAl Ka Yee Gigi

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 24 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Miricor
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 99 to 179, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to the matter. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B R

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEENSEE

AR EIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB ETNAUENARETSEE

Revenue recognition from prepaid packages

Revenue from treatment services is recognised when such
services have been rendered to customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which are
non-refundable, are deferred and reported as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Customers who may not exercise all of the contractual
rights of the prepaid packages upon expiry of the service
period, and such unutilised portion are referred to as
breakage.

The Group recognised an expected breakage amount as
revenue in proportion to the historical pattern of rights
exercised by the customers. Upon expiry of the service
period, the unutilised portion of the prepaid packages is
fully recognised in profit or loss. As at 31 March 2022, the
carrying amount of contract liabilities amounted to
HK$116,463,000. During the year ended 31 March 2021,
revenue recognised from treatment services amounted to
HK$289,096,000.

The determination of the expected breakage amount
involves management’s estimate based on the Group’s
historical experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages.
The recognition of revenue from the unutilised portion of
the expired prepaid packages involves significant
management’s judgement to determine the appropriate
timing when the obligations to provide services are
considered to be expired based on the Group’s forfeiture

policy.

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 5 and 22
to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures included:

obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition policy in relation to prepaid packages;

assessing the estimates used in the determination of
expected breakage amount such as historical
experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages by
examining the related usage records and comparing
to the actual usage records on a sampling basis;
and

testing the internal controls and checking the
calculation of revenue recognised related to the
unutilised portion of the expired prepaid packages
by examining the underlying sales contracts and
related records on a sampling basis.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Key audit matter
BRENSBE

=T EE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

Other Information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

HIER FRAEME S
BEARERBUANERAE - AERRE
HBRFRANES  BTEEFAMEERE
BB AR -

BAEGEEMBHRRNERL MREEME
B BT T EZFREMERBERTAEAN
EEEw -

BRMYEGEMBRRNET  RANWEE
BEMER - EIEES - EEEMER
BHEGA M B HRR K IMEFET B2 AR
OB EFEEREEREUFFEEAHER
AR BN - EREFS AT TR - 2RK
MRASHMESFEEAHERRL - RAFE
WEZFE - EEHHE - VB EARSE -

o0

+
i
=
=
=
=

EENEEMBHRERBAAENET

BERREFARRRBERRGMAGRML
BEMBHRE LN RBE(RFED) B E
RERBEEMANNEEPBERE - WHE
RRBEEEMHRROEE TN FER NG
oK 55 7R 1 28 B0 B K S8 RR SR AL P 75 B PO B2

EREFAMHBHRERE - EQrfEZRAR
it BEEERELENES  LEEARABRT
BREAFBLEABNEER  URERAFEL
EREFER RIF BERREFAEN =
SEFRIUF UKL HFERGERNER

TE

ERZEEWY BERREZERETRAS
B ESENVHREERE -

2022 Fif / EPEREBEEFRAT 95



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and is
therefore the key audit matter. We describe the matter in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yen Kai Shun, Catherine.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

24 June 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEEsREMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HZE2022F3B31 HIEFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
P 5T FHERT FETT
REVENUE &= 5 363,915 128,871
Other income HAtw g A 5 1,314 12,753
Cost of inventories and consumables GFEMIBREMKA (29,038) (12,990)
Staff costs BT (125,341) (70,889)
Property rentals and related expenses MM e RARERX (48,641) (21,166)
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BERBETE
equipment (24,797) (12,971)
Other expenses HAnFsZ (103,184) (37,976)
Finance costs TSRS 7 (3,027) (1,849)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB BER,(B5E) 6 31,201 (16,217)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrigBitfe, (FAx) 10 (5,819) 3,564
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KATREEANEGEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS wmF(E1R)
OF THE COMPANY 25,382 (12,653)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hith2ms (FE)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that ~ RHEZ B AT s EF DS
may be reclassified to profit or loss in Tﬁﬁémﬁmi\ﬁ”&ﬁé/
subsequent periods: (E518) -
Exchange differences on translation of BB GINETSROIE K = 7R
foreign operations 314 (4)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE KARBEEAELEE
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE 2ENE (BB 88
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 25,696 (12,657)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE RATREBRER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BEAER !
EQUITY HOLDERS OF SREN,(B])
THE COMPANY
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 12 HK6.35 cents  HK(3.16) cents

6.35 3811l (3.16) 7l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e RN R
As at 31 March 2022
M2022%3 A31H

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3E FHET F&TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KRB 13 117,678 34,498
Right-of-use assets ERAREE 14(a) 129,898 42,719
Gooduwill GG 15 4,305 4,305
Deposits %e 18 16,794 5,820
Deferred tax assets FIEFRIBE B 24 8,033 6,815
Total non-current assets IEREEERLE 276,708 94,157
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories Ve 16 37,969 14,154
Trade receivables E SRR 17 2,237 16,263
Prepayments, other receivables and TERUIE - HAn R &
other assets HiEE 18 31,259 24,966
Tax recoverable A] U B F7 18 485 3,476
Pledged time deposits EHEAE TR 19 62,476 57,346
Cash and cash equivalents BeRESEEY 19 65,680 161,773
Total current assets MEEEBE 200,106 277,978
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B S EMER 20 7,829 2,076
Other payables and accruals HuENBER RIESTER 21 20,467 6,616
Contract liabilities and deferred revenue & 48 & R IEE Yz 22 130,238 168,182
Provision for reinstatement costs {B1E R R BT 23 2,044 483
Lease liabilities MEaE 14(b) 37,997 16,948
Tax payable FEIRLIE 4,419 -
Total current liabilities mENBEBRE 202,994 194,305
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ REBEE (BE)
(LIABILITIES) B (2,888) 83,673
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT MEERABER
LIABILITIES 273,820 177,830
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE MR AR R &
As at 31 March 2022
MR20224F 3 H31H

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T T F&TT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 24 2,802 1,604
Provision for reinstatement costs B8R AN B 23 10,161 5,114
Lease liabilities HEBE 14(b) 89,587 25,538
Total non-current liabilities IEmB B ELE 102,550 32,256
Net assets BEEE 171,270 145,574
EQUITY S
Issued capital BT 25 4,000 4,000
Reserves #E 27 167,270 141,574
Total equity S ARE 171,270 145,574

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi

RYImLZ+
Director

EE

Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln
AFmEE
Director

EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBHR

For the year ended 31 March 2022

BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

Share
Issued  premium Merger Exchange  Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve profits equity
BT i) aff EX RE Bi
EN BER R R A aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT FHT THER THER
(Note 27)
(FizE27)
At 1 April 2020 F2020F 4 A1 H 4,000 67,788 4,995 - 81,448 158,231
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (12,653) (12,653)
Other comprehensive loss FEEMEZAEFE
for the year - - - @) - 4)
Total comprehensive loss FEXEBELE
for the year - - - 4) (12,653) (12,657)
Reclassification BHOE - - (4,995) - 4,995 -
At 31 March 2021 and R2021F3A31 AR
1 April 2021 2021F4 A1 H 4,000 67,788* -+ (4)* 73,790* 145574
Profit for the year FERF = = = = 25,382 25,382
Other comprehensive income  EE H i 2 E iz
for the year - - - 314 - 314
Total comprehensive income  FE 2 EWEEE
for the year - - - 314 25,382 25,696
At 31 March 2022 202253 A31 R 4,000 67,788* =+ 310* 99,172 171,270

*

ZERBREPEEGEMBMRARZEEGRE
167,270,000 7T (2021 48 : 141,574,000 7T ) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$167,270,000 *
(2021: HK$141,574,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= Ao~ —1
12 \éiﬁﬁ ﬁi‘%‘%
For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31HIEFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBFBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AT A(E518) 31,201 (16,217)
Adjustments for: YIS IEFE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMREITE
equipment 6 24,797 12,971
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 6 34,991 18,329
Interest income B A 5 (494) (2,739)
Finance costs B TS AR R 7 3,027 1,849
COVID-19-related rent concessions ERT T A A AR RE R E 2R R (1,297) (2,055)
Termination of leases EE®rIt = 55
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HEIIETE - WE
property, plant and equipment, net NERETE B i8558 6 3 269
Impairment of/(reversal of impairment of) & 5 fEUS BE ZRE
trade receivables, net (RERE)FE 6 (92) 100
92,136 12,562
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERA, () (23,795) 166
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 2 5 REU IR 20 A (#210) 14,120 (8,391)
Increase in prepayments, other receivables T/ 2018 « B fE Uk BE 27 &
and other assets E A& AN (13,544) (12,678)
Increase in trade payables Z S EMNEEFIE I 5,753 1,737
Increase in other payables HEmEMABRERNESER
and accruals 0 13,845 549
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities & #) & 1& RIETE K=
and deferred revenue @GRl ) (37,944) 32,507
Decrease in provision for BB R AT
reinstatement costs (433) (419)
Increase in pledged time deposits B3I i HA 17 B 0 (5,130) (1,886)
Cash generated from operations KEERITEARNIRS 45,008 24,147
Interest received B2 UEFI B 477 3,504
Interest paid BAFE (3,027) (1,849
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid), net :E[E], /(2 ) & F S5 E 28 1,571 (1,267)
Net cash flows from operating activities ~ KR EEFMERE R EF5E 44,029 24,535
CASH FLOWS FROM RETDHMBREESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, EEYE  MELZEER
plant and equipment (107,852) (5,343)
Deposits paid for the purchase ofitems  BEBEWE% - MEKBZEERS
of property, plant and equipment BEfiize (3,786) (119)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE BENMREBIEE
property, plant and equipment FTiS k18 - 34
Decrease in non-pledged time deposits A BE AR R 2|2 H B =18 A
with original maturity of more than KSR E HR 1 SOR
three months when acquired 14,128 57,625
Net cash flows (used in)/from B&EEE (TR, Fi5Re
investing activities mEFE (97,510) 52,197
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
o miﬁﬁl)lbéﬂs—%

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FET

CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING RBIEEEFBSHRERE

ACTIVITY
Principal portion of lease payments HENFH RS (28,735) (14,650)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH R& R & ZEWigin,~

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RA) 358 (82,216) 62,082
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HIE & MIEEEED

of year 147,645 85,574
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, 9N [& & B gh ih) 57 £ 5 48

net 251 (11)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S XHNERERBEEZEY

END OF YEAR 65,680 147,645
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASH H 4 RESZEYEL

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS obagiiy
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTER 65,680 23,255
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 & AR R E|HI B

maturity of three months or less A= {E A8

when acquired AR E BRI 5K = 124,390
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ # & AR E|Ef H

maturity of more than three months HBE={EA

when acquired EIATE HER = 14,128
Cash and cash equivalents as stated tRE M BARRF AT

in the consolidated statement of HehIREEFED

financial position 19 65,680 161,773
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 & AR5 R E|HI B

maturity of more than three months BB ={E A

when acquired AR E HiTE 5K = (14,128)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated REREREXRMIBES R

in the consolidated statement of BeEEY

cash flows 65,680 147,645
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

Corporate and Group Information

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The registered office
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at 18/F,
Nan Fung Tower, 88 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Company’s subsidiaries were principally engaged in the
provision of medical aesthetic services and the sale of skin care
products.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is Sunny
Bright Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follow:

NAREBEER
AAElR—HERSHSEMALNE
HNEBERAA - RAFMEMBER M
1 & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands © N2 A K = B & ¥ it
B RBEBRIRTHETSSREERNE
1848 °

ARRRBERBRAF  MAL B
REEBR BIRHRBERRY RS
ERWHE -

EZRR ARAMEERERAFRER
RIERA R REHAERAR AR (—RER
RBRZEEEMAINAF)

MEBAR &R
RAFEBMBAR L FHENT :

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

RAREERERDH
Place of
incorporation Issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMR LR BRI
A% =ES R EERRE B MiE TEEER
Coresmax Group British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited (‘BVI")
HERAHE 1% REER
([RERXES])
Miricor Beauty (BVI) Limited BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
REBRUHES 1% RERR
G Max Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
B 18T RUERRY
Miricor Beauty (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Sale of skin care products
EPER (BH)ERDA BE 18T HEREER
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
Limited aesthetic services
B 1B RUEBEXTRHG
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(Central) Limited aesthetic services
B 187 RUEBSBXDREG
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. RAIREEER &)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBATZER (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARREERER DI
Place of
incorporation Issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
FMRIHER BRIT
£8 S ERRRE Ef# BiE TEXR
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(CWB) Limited aesthetic services
B 18T RUEBSBZTRHG
CM Technology Development ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
Limited services
B 18T REERRE
CMIP Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Owner of trademarks
ZRBR AT EBRAHE 1%L [EIEZ PN
Cos Max E-Commerce Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Sale of skin care products
B 18T HEEEERD
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$300,000 - 100 Provision of medical
(TST) Limited aesthetic services
B 300,000 7T REBEXARHG
Vitae Wellness Beauty Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of health and
beauty services
B 18T RUEREESRE
Vitae Wellness Beauty (Central)  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of health and
Limited beauty services
B 18T RUEREESRS
Vitae Wellness Beauty (TST) Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Provision of health and
Limited beauty services
B 1T RERREARS
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in RV DESRAEASBERFEEE
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for BREAZEYNAEBREEFELTE
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Bz RN RFIME AR - EERAHL
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion HEHE AR ZFEEFEREBANILE
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries of the Company had issued any debt R|MEBAR - BERAGMEAR S %
securities at the end of the reporting period. TRMEBES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation 2.1 RBLEAE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HK$2,888,000. The net current liabilities
position was mainly due to the contract liabilities of
HK$116,463,000 all classified under current liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period. Taking into account the stable
operating cash inflows to be generated from the provision of
medical aesthetic services and the sales of skin care products,
the directors consider the Group has adequate resources to
meet its liabilities, commitments and funding requirements as
and when they fall due within one year from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

WEMBERR VBB EGAAG
B2 BAMBHREER ([ FEY KR
SEAD (ErEREmERENBRELE
Al FREGEN(EBSERD K
2E) BEARGTRALTERFK
Pl WBEREMBRE - LLFHHEIRETD
RIFESLRAERE - Fr B I
WEHBRRIAEBITZ - MAEE
MIORABESEIZ T -

MN2022F3A31H  AEEMNRBAR
FRHE RS & EE 2,888,0008 T - MBI A&
EFEMAETZARMERRDEAR
FBENSE LB E116,463,000% 7T AT
B BERINBEHBEXARBLIEEE
EEMHEERENKLERERA &
EREFAEEERHERENEBRE
HRE—FAIHNEE RERES
Tk Al EFRBERAFELCEH
EIREUTRE S

mEE%E

KM BERER BB ARERE 20224
BABIBILFEZWHRE - KB LQA
EHARRERKERENNER (B
EEER)  BAKENBE2EIRET
i 2 A Y F] 4 [0 S A 42 3 B X B RE T ER
FRRBREEENEBEHFERETH
RN EZZFLR(AE T AREIESH
BRETETHBERDNRGEN 2 RE
RN By - RIESIRHIME -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEAE (#)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest
rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
of financial assets and liabilities when accounting for
changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a
direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise
on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a
temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is
designated as a risk component. The relief allows an
entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the
entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy. The amendment did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends
the availability of the practical expedient for lessees to
elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the
other conditions for applying the practical expedient are
met. The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has adopted the amendment on 1 April 2021
and applied the practical expedient during the year ended
31 March 2022 to all rent concessions granted by the
lessors that affected only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022 as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. A reduction in the lease payments
arising from the rent concessions of HK$1,297,000 has
been accounted for as a variable lease payment by
derecognising part of the lease liabilities and crediting to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2022. There
was no impact on the opening balance of equity as at 1
April 2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 SR R Y =
For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 (2011) Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?®
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®®

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 - Comparative

Information?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current® #
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabiltties arising from
a Single Transaction?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1,
to HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 9, lllustrative

Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41°

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERKRERINDEBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERKRERDEBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) #&%L’%EIJ ()
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current B ERNEIRBITEESEAET

or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right
to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is not
necessary. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments on the Group’s accounting policy disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERKRERNE BT

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax
asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERKRERDEBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBERE

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHREBRE @)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
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Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured HEBELRRBNEDIRSEEEN
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portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement ATEFE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or AFEAMBS2HEERFTEEHESF
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between RHPTHEEESS WS EEA GBS

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assets takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and deferred tax assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

@iy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follow:
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Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms HEMHEERE J A BA Sk 20%
or 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% FEREE 20%
Treatment devices 20% BEI2RE 20%
Tools and equipment 25% TAEREE 25%
Office equipment 20% WRERME 20%
Motor vehicles 20% e 20%
Computer equipment 20% BINRE 20%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBERE @)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

®)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the underlying lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of

other equipment that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHREBRE @)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group may consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials and other direct costs. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
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required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted HINEAEIN - €5 ABR AR
present value amount arising from the passage of time is 7K o

included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax FrE®

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(@ Provision of medical aesthetic services
Revenue from treatment services, medical consultation
services, prescription and dispensing of medical products
are recognised when the services have been rendered to
customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which are
non-refundable, are deferred and reported as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Customers who may not exercise all the
contractual rights of the prepaid packages upon expiry of
the service period, and such unutilised portion are referred
to as breakage. The Group recognised an expected
breakage amount as revenue in proportion to the
historical pattern of rights exercised by the customers.
Upon expiry of the service period, the unutilised portion of
the prepaid packages are fully recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)  Sale of skin care products
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
clients.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, costs
incurred to obtain a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if the costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
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scheme.
Foreign currencies ShiE
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, W ETBERERABITLEY > MATIE

which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition from unutilised prepaid packages
The recognition of revenue from the unutilised portion of the
expired prepaid packages involves significant management’s
judgement to determine the appropriate timing when the
obligations to provide services are considered to be expired
based on the Group’s forfeiture policy and hence the
recognition criteria for the related revenue are met in
accordance with the accounting policy for revenue recognition
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

BEREFHIE K EET @)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued) AT T RERE (&)
Utilisation pattern of medical aesthetic services BBEEIRRENEAER

Customers who may not exercise all the contractual rights of
the prepaid packages upon expiry of the service period, and
such unutilised portion are referred to as breakage. The Group
determines the expected breakage amount with reference to
the Group’s historical experience on the utilisation of prepaid
packages. Estimates of expected breakage amount are
sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Group’s past
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experience may not be representative of the actual outcome in R o
the future.
Impairment of goodwill BERE

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are included in note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use
assets) at the end of each reporting period. The non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e. customer type).
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Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(Continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the medical aesthetic services sector, the historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs such as market
interest rates and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates.
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Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Operating Segment Information

The Group has one reportable operating segment, namely the
non-surgical medical aesthetic services segment, and is
principally engaged in the provision of medical aesthetic
services and the sale of skin care products in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Information
reported to the Group’s management, for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment, focuses on
the operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s
resources are integrated and therefore no discrete operating
segment financial information is available. Accordingly, no
operating segment information is presented.

Information about geographical areas

The following tables set out geographical information about
revenue from external customers for the years ended 31 March
2022 and 2021 and non-current assets as at 31 March 2022
and 2021.

(@) Revenue from external customers
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(@) RBMEHEF A

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Hong Kong &5 350,547 126,057
The PRC R 13,368 2,814
363,915 128,871

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the services provided or products delivered.

bt YR B AR R IR AR SR A
EmEEIEL -

2022 3R/ EHEREEER AT

141



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

4. QOperating Segment Information (Continued)
Information about geographical areas (Continued)

(b) Non-current assets

BN EER (&)
hEER(E)
(b) FRBEE

2022 2021

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHxT FHEIT

Hong Kong BB 255,003 80,427
The PRC S 664 1,214
255,667 81,641

The non-current asset information above is based on the

location of the assets and excludes financial assets and

deferred tax assets.

Information about major clients

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single client of the

Group has accounted for over 10% of the Group’s total revenue
during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, no

EHIFRBEENEMREEEN
VEEL  BTBReREENE

ERIBEE °

IREFER

B Z= 202243 A31 H & 202143 431 H
EFE - aRARBERE—FFAEH
EEEM KL REBEA R E AWK

information about major clients in accordance with HKFRS 8 K110% * iR AR IR & 78 B 15 3R 5 2E A
Operating Segments is presented. EBREESHZINFTETPER
5. Revenue and Other Income Wz Ko H At W A
An analysis of revenue is as follow: Was AT -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEF & QU
Treatment services BZRTE 289,096 108,417
Skin care products EEER 74,295 19,915
Medical consultation services BEGHRS 15 31
Prescription and dispensing of medical BE 75 M Be ZERR 75
products 509 508
363,915 128,871
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5. Revenue and Other Income (Continued) 5. WamkEMIA &)
Revenue from contracts with customers ) e L&
() Disaggregated revenue information i) ZHFVKEER
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Types of goods or services ERSREES
Sale of skin care products HEEEEMD 74,295 19,915
Provision of medical aesthetic IR EEARGE
services 289,620 108,956
Total revenue from contracts EREALBIE
with customers 363,915 128,871
Geographical markets i T 35
Hong Kong B 350,547 126,057
The PRC =8 13,368 2,814
Total revenue from contracts BEA MBI
with customers 363,915 128,871
Timing of revenue recognition Wi Fe PR R
Goods or services transferred RS EEE R R
at a point in time 74,819 20,454
Services transferred over time Y R R AR TS 289,096 108,417
Total revenue from contracts ERAHBNE
with customers 363,915 128,871
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5. Revenue and Other Income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

5. W KEAMUWA &)

EF
(i)

Bl (E)
B RER (F)
TRETARE HEROYES

B ABSREAARSHINAH
BE:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT
Revenue recognised that was STARSHUENEED
included in contract liabilities at ERERIE ¢
the beginning of the reporting
period:
Treatment services BERS 142,239 42,882
Skin care products EEER 30 155
142,269 43,037

(i) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of medical aesthetic services

The performance obligation associated with treatment
services is satisfied over time when the services are
rendered. The performance obligations associated with
medical consultation services and prescription and
dispensing of medical products are satisfied at the point
in time when the services are rendered.

Sale of skin care products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the skin care products and payment is mainly on cash
and/or credit card settlement, except for corporate
customers, where payment is due within 2 to 30 days
from delivery.

144 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2022

(ii)

BHEE
FRANEERENTTNER ML
T

1EHBEXTIRG

B EIZ AR A B R0 B 4 B ER RIS
ERHRBERREZENX - EEEEH
AR A Ko B2 77 I e BEBR 7% 8 R Y R
MBEERIRHIRA R — B R E
B o

B E
BREENRXNEBEREKER
MR EEUR SR HERFR
BHE - ENFRRMEF2E30K
MBI D ETFERIN



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

5. Revenue and Other Income (Continued)

(ii)

s R E MU A ()

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EEEHWNE (&)
Performance obligations (Continued) i) BREEE)
An analysis of other income is as follow: HiWADHTIOT -
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FERT FiET
Other income Heb A
Bank interest income HRITH B A 494 2,739
Government subsidies eGSR (@) 648 9,625
Others HAh 172 389
1,314 12,753

The government subsidies represent subsidies received under the
Employment Support Scheme and the applicable subsidy scheme
under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. There were no unfulfiled conditions
or contingencies relating to the subsidies.

U 4 Bh 18 W B A B 45 BT R R U
WIRE]FERHRARES
THUER A B EIMHEE) - BRIRS
BN AR A I R A E
e
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6. Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 6. BREATEF,(EE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ REFBBBATGEMN (EBE) L&
(crediting): B (GEA) THIEEEEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Lease payments not included in T AEaE =S
the measurement of lease liabilities ZHENK 6,540 296
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERAFAX
Directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (TEEESEME (HESs))
Salaries, bonuses and other allowances e - TEA R EMERL 111,088 60,516
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RUKEFE B R
(defined contribution scheme) (EFEMHHREED 4,669 2,213
115,757 62,729
Auditor’s remuneration IZEEN < 1,700 1,650
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB NGRIBITE
equipment 24,797 12,971
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEERE 34,991 18,329
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of B 5 EWERFORE, CRERE)
trade receivables, net FFE (92) 100
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of B MEEDE - BE M RE
property, plant and equipment, net HEBEFE 3 269
Foreign exchange differences, net ME 2 R HER (266) (176)
7. Finance Costs 7. BATERAR
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Interest on lease liabilities HEREHNE 3,027 1,849
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8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEMe
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BEEEHMAXTSMAER AR ([#B
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock FrESEFTRE - BEERAEHE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), 383(1)@) * (b) * Q) KR B (HESE
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies EFEEN) B FE 2O WEEZ ANEE
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of EEMEMT
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follow:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT
Fees e 1,212 962
Other emoluments: HEMEE
Salaries and allowances e KRR 8,336 7,163
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R 4R3E 5T 24t 2k
(defined contribution scheme) (EREFETED) 36 35
8,372 7,198
9,584 8,160
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BULFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNMBILIERITES I
during the year were as follow: ST
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH&T
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David B Y 5 A 204 204
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo ERERAN ST & 204 204
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FRERE 204 204
612 612
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRN - WEE R EMER T B IE
independent non-executive directors during the year BITESZ2B& (20214 : &) o
(2021: Nil).
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 8. EEMe )
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme

Fees inkind contributions Total
2= RIKER

wE KREVEAN STEIMR @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TR TR

Year ended 31 March 2022 BZE2022F3A31ALLEE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (Mrs. Gigi Ma") 283 &+ ([ SR MM & £ ) - 6,187 18 6,205
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln A F=oa - 2,149 18 2,167
Dr. Lam Ping Yan 1! HREBED 600 - - 600
600 8,336 36 8,972
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE2021F3A31ALEE
Mrs. Gigi Ma SEm L - 5,398 18 5,416
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln A F AN - 1,765 17 1,782
Dr. Lam Ping Yan 0! HREBED 350 - - 350
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry BEEELED - - - -
350 7,163 35 7,548
() Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln was appointed as an Executive Director () AFREECEZEANTES 8
with effect from 22 April 2020. 20204 4 A 22 HABHEM -
(0] Dr. Lam Ping Yan was appointed as an Executive Director with () MREBELECEZTARTES 8
effect from 15 July 2020. 2020 7 A 15 HABAEM -
(I Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry was resigned as an Executive Director with (n BREEBLEECHIRNTES © B2020
effect from 1 July 2020. F7TA1ERBRER -
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 8. EEMew
(b) Executive directors (Continued) (b) BITES(E)
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group FA - AEERERTAES AT
to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining TEe - fEAIAREE S NA
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2021: N5 B 1% 2 22 ) sk Bl Bk 4 12 (2021
Nil). FrE)o
During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mrs. Gigi Ma and HZE2021F3A3IBIEEE 5
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln waived remuneration of RN 2+ M=t E o Rl E
HK$450,000 and HK$102,000, respectively. 450,000 7T, 5 102,000 7T #9 B
@ o
9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. hEmEmFMESR
The five highest paid employees included two (2021: two) hE&EmHHES BEMA (2021 4F
Directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 MB)ES - HFFEHL LXHES -
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2021: HEtp=F(2021F : ZR)IIEBEEHZSH
three) non-director highest paid employees are as follow: BiE E B F BB T ¢
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 10,720 9,254
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R k@ T 2458 47 48
10,767 9,302
The number of the non-director highest paid employees whose FHNTATHENIFEESE= FHBE
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follow: BEABMAT -
Number of employees
EEAE
2022 2021
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T & 3,000,000 7% 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7t & 3,500,000 % 7T - 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 & 7T & 4,000,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 & 7T & 4,500,000 7 7T 1 -
3 3
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10. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) 10. FTSRiS (%)
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% BEAFESHIOBEFARBEELENR
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in HOE R OB O F 1%16.5% (2021 F ¢
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the 16.5%) KT EET IR - e AR E —
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits W AT - 32T AMNE /&
tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) BEBTITHAEEREE - ZMBARHA
of assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% 2,000,000 T (2021 £F : 2,000,000 7%
(2021: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed 7T ) FE RR B OE A 128.25% (2021 4F ¢
at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere 8.25%) MR AT - 2 T K IER T &= 7
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the BIJ1%16.5% (2021 4F : 16.5%) B 1 & 4N
countries in which the Group operates. B o Efhib[@ FEER B m F 2 B I Jh iR AR

SEQEMERRKCRITHEAE -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Current — Hong Kong B EH
— Charge for the year — FRZH 5,792 83
— Underprovision/(overprovision) in — BAFERETR/
prior years (FREEA M) 47 (21)
Deferred tax (note 24) EERTE (5 24) (20) (3,626)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FRBBEI L (B5) 858 5,819 (3,564)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/ REBETMERERFBATRF (&
(loss) before tax at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax B HEmBEIERS S GEe) miRAE
expense/(credit) at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follow: FERBERAFENBEERY (e my
BT :
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax BEADEF(BE) 31,201 (16,217)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% A TERE16.5% 51 5,148 (2,676)
Difference in tax rates for specific provinces #5E & 17 8k & M # B AT B /Y
or enacted by local authority ZH (945) -
Adjustments in respect of current tax BT FEENAIFIE
of previous years ER AR 47 (21)
Income not subject to tax BAERBA (269) (2,083)
Expenses not deductible for tax ATHOF A 2 1,226 923
Others Hip 612 293
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s BEAEBERRERFERES L
effective rate (2022: 18.7%; 2021: 22.0%) () (20224 : 18.7% :
20214 : 22.0%) 5,819 (3,564)
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11.

12.

13.

Dividend 11, iz B
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 HZE2022F3A31 HILFE » &R
March 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed since the EZBIRNEE  BFEEARAR I E
end of the reporting period (2021: Nil). EEIRMEAIRE (2021 F - &)
Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable to 12. RAmlEBRERGB ARG
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Company FRER, (EE)
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is GIREARETN(EER)NLEIEREARAAN
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity LR ESEEAELEERF
holders of the Company of HK$25,382,000 (2021: loss of 25,382,000 JT(20214F : & 1B
HK$12,653,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary 12,653,00078 70) R FAB 7L @A
shares of 400,000,000 (2021: 400,000,000) in issue during the o #E S 15 £1400,000,000 A% (2021 4F -
year. 400,000,000 %) 5T EFH ©
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue HZE2022F3HA31HM2021F3 A31H
during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. IHFE - REBWEDZHITEBEREL A
% -
Property, Plant and Equipment 13. Y%~ WFE MR
Leasehold Fumiture ~ Treatment Tools and Office Motor Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices  equipment  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
HENEEE  HEREE BRRE IARRE BOERE e ElRE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEn ThR THr TEn ThR THn TEn
31 March 2022 2022F3831A
At 31 March 2021 and RONEIANAR
1 Apr 2021; WAE4R1R:
Cost i 35,410 2218 47,634 3,895 574 2,351 9,358 101,440
Accumulated depreciation 2 HE (21,356) (1,268) (35,205) (2,604) (420) 2119 (3,880) (66,942)
Net carrying amount EmEE 14,054 950 12,339 1,291 154 232 5478 34,498
At 1 April 2021 Ro01E4A1H 14,054 950 12,339 1,291 154 232 5478 34,498
Additions NE 50,348 6,347 43,895 2,686 243 80 4372 107,971
Depreciation provided during £ &
the year (12,628) (1,021) (7,915) (1,060) () (141) (1,955) (24,797)
Disposal/urite-off HE /W - ® = o 5 - - @)
Exchange realignment ERAE 3 = S o - - 6 9
At 31 March 2022, net of R2022%E3A31 8
acoumUated depreciation BB EHAE 51,777 6273 48319 2017 320 1 7,001 117678
At31 March 2022: Ro020%3A318
Cost 7% 82,193 8,307 91,529 6,203 817 2,431 13,640 205,210
Accumulated depreciation  3f#E (30,416) (2,124 (43,210) (3,286) (497) (2,260) (5,739) (87,532)
Net carrying amount FRFE 51,777 6,273 48,319 2917 320 17 7,901 117,678
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

13. W% « WE Mk @)

Leasehold Furniture Treatment Tools and (Office Motor Computer
improvements ~ and fixtures devices equipment equipment vehicles equipment Total
REnERE HERRE Bk TAR#RE  WAZERE ot ElkE @
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
ThER AR FiEn Thn AR TR Thn iR
31 March 2021 2021F3831A
At 1 April 2020: R0E4R1E
Cost AR 35,170 2,224 44,641 3,672 531 2,351 5,639 94,228
Accumulated depreciaion ~ E3147E (16,097) (956) 30,383 (1919 (370) (1999 (3020) (54,737)
Net carrying amount REGE 19,073 1,268 14,258 1,754 161 368 2,619 39,491
At 1 April 2020 R2020E4A1R 19,073 1,268 14,258 1,754 161 368 2,619 39,491
Addtions HE 518 56 3,201 290 43 - 4162 8,210
Depreciation provided during /i E (&
the year (5,538) (368) (5,101) (746) (50) (126) (1,042 (12,971)
Disposal/write-off &/ - ) (19 ) - - (270) (303)
Exchange realignment EREE 1 - - 1 - - 9 1
At 31 March 2021, netof ~ R2021E3A318
accumulated depreciaion BB 25t E 14,054 950 12,339 1,291 154 23 5478 34498
At 31 March 2021: RONEIA3NA:
Cost i 35410 2,18 47634 38% 574 2,351 9,358 101,440
Accumulated depreciaion  Z&HTE (21,35) (1268) (35,295) (2,604) (420) 2119 (3880) (66,942)
Net carrying amount FEFE 14,054 950 12339 1291 154 232 5478 34,498
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14. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for its medical aesthetic centres,
retail stores, office premises, car park spaces and warehouses
used in its operations. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from 4 months to 6 years. Certain office
equipment has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is
individually of low value. There is a lease contract that includes
variable lease payments which are further discussed below.

(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follow:

14, FE

REBEREBAA
AEERLEMANBEXTH L F
EE MRAEYE  FESRAETA
HMEAL - MEBRBLHIERN FMOE
RAERF - ETHAERBEEY /12
ASATR,/REEBEEE - TXH
E-—TRREENEEENTNEES
#) e

(@) FEAEEE
AEENEREEEREERTR
ZENNT -

Leased

properties

HEWmE

HK$’000

FET

As at 1 April 2020 M2020F 4 A1 H 50,310
Additions NE 11,441

Termination of leases MExIE (695)

Depreciation charge HEEA (18,329

Exchange realignment b R ®)
As at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R2021F3 831 HK2021F4 A1 H 42,719
Additions =T 122,151

Depreciation charge HEEA (34,991)
Exchange realignment b H R 19
At 31 March 2022 R20229F3 A31H 129,898
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14. Leases (Continued) 14. HHE &)
AKEBERABA(E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follow:

(b)

HEAE
HEABERAABELRFRESHMT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Carrying amount at the beginning FHREE
of the year 42,486 48,503
New leases EoIViEN=1 115,111 11,335
Accretion of interest recognised FNRERF SN
during the year 3,027 1,849
Termination of leases MERIE = (640)
COVID-19-related rent concessions B M4 A8 &9 TH £ 7 & (1,297) (2,055)
Payments R (31,762) (16,499)
Exchange realignment P& 5, 828 19 @)
Carrying amount at the end FAREREE
of the year 127,584 42,486
Analysed into: DA
Non-current portion IERENEL D 89,587 25,538
Current portion mENER S 37,997 16,948
127,584 42,486

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
34 to the financial statements.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all

eligible rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases
of certain properties during the year.
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14. Leases (Continued)

()

14, HE#®)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBIEAEBA (E)
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) RNEFPHIRHABEEFBEN SN
leases are as follows: T
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEHNE 3,027 1,849
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 34,991 18,329
Expense relating to short-term leases RBHERKEEEEN
and of low-value assets R GtAmERS R
(included in property rentals and HERX)
related expenses) 5,430 277
Variable lease payments notincluded in -~ Rt AFRE B EHEZ IERENK
the measurement of lease liabilities (stAERS MABFRS)
(included in property rentals and
related expenses) 1,110 19
COVID-19-related rent concessions BTG A AR E SR (1,297) (2,055)
Termination of leases MAERIE - 55
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R Bzs iR 4% 43,261 18,474

The Group leased certain medical aesthetic centres and

retail stores which contain variable lease payment terms

that are based on certain percentage of revenue of the

operations being undertaken therein pursuant to the

terms and conditions as stipulated in the rental

agreement. There are also minimum annual base rental

arrangements for these leases.

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 29(b)

to the financial statements.

AEBEHEE TEEXATLEE
EE HhBEa#HEENRE
R BENSKIREEE WA
VB TR B R 1 - IR P AR A UL
@mAaTANEE - ZFHETA
REFEEAESZHE -

SHEeMHE
(o) R EE -

R B 75 R B o

B
’\ \l]]]—\
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15. Goodwill 15. &
HK$'000
T
Cost and carrying amount at 1 April 2020, R2020F4H1H - 2021F3H31H8 -
31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 2021F 4 A1 H&2022F3 A31HZ
PR B SRR 4,305

On 26 December 2009, the Group acquired the business of
Health Max Laser and Medical Skin Care Limited (“Health
Max”), a company controlled by Mr. Lai Ying, the sibling of Mrs.
Gigi Ma. Health Max was engaged in the provision of medical
aesthetic services.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill of HK$4,305,000 acquired through business
combination has been allocated to the non-surgical medical
aesthetic service cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a 36-month (2021: 36-month) period.
Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwiill:

o Revenue is estimated based on the business trend in the
industry of medical aesthetic operation, historical average
spending per client and client cover, taking into account
the number of treatment rooms in each medical aesthetic
centre, centre locations, market conditions and economic
outlook.

° Cost of inventories sold is estimated based on the rate of
increase in revenue and the expected market conditions.

° The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the 36-month period is 3% (2021: 3%) for each
reporting period.

o The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the cash-generating unit. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15% (2021:
11%).
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16. Inventories 16. 78
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Skin care products EEEMm 32,118 11,756
Consumables and other supplies VB R S H A o 5,851 2,398
37,969 14,154
17. Trade Receivables B 5 RUFRK
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiETT
Trade and credit card receivables B MIERREIERR 2,188 16,344
Others Eh 85 47
2,273 16,391
Impairment A (36) (128)
2,237 16,263
The Group’s trading terms with its clients are mainly on cash AEBEARPHORZBEREZARS
i s

and/or credit card settlement while the trading terms with its

corporate customers are on credit. The credit period is generally

2 to 30 days for credit card settlement for the respective

financial institutions and up to 60 days for corporate customers.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are

reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not

hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade

receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

R/ RERREE MEECERPH
RHGRBEERE - BESREEIN
ERREENEEY F}QEQiSOE
MECEEFPHNEEMNRLZ/6E0H - K
£5 [ BN B AR BE 2 R UBR ) B MK B R
NEREREEERR SREEEETH
ENANES AEEYEREE SR
W R s SRR B E AR M A5
B - BHRUBRK S -
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17. Trade Receivables (Continued) 17.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follow:

BRI (&)
RIBEIR > B EKEZIREER
REMBEBEEEORRINET

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FETT

Within 1 month —@AAR 763 15,559
1 to 3 months —Z=@A 896 669
Over 3 months BE={1EA 578 35
2,237 16,263

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follow:

B RYGRFOREERBENZBNT

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHxT FHEIT

At the beginning of the year REA] 128 28
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment), JE{EE S, CREEE)

net (note 6) FEE (FsEe) (92) 100

At the end of the year RER 36 128

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

17. Trade Receivables (continuead)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2022

17.

BRI (&)

TERHIIBLAE EE 5 8 U R B

wRENEERRNER

MR2022%F3H31H

Past due
1to3 Over
Current months 3 months Total
e —-Z=@A ®BE=@EA st
ECL rate TBEEEEEX 1.55% 1.43% 1.87% 1.58%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) EEREE (T T) 775 909 589 2,273
ECLs (HK$'000) EHEEEBR
(FA7L) 12 13 11 36
As at 31 March 2021 7"20215£3H31H
Past due
pa:h
1103 Over
Current months 3 months Total
Bi#  —==fEF HBB={EHA 4BEr
ECL rate BHEEBEX 0.77% 0.99% 2.78% 0.78%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) AREEE(TET) 16,153 202 36 16,391
ECLs (HK$'000) EREEEEBR
(F#&T) 125 2 1 128
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18. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other

18. B IR - HARUKER T E

Assets fth & B
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FET FHET
Prepayments TEfRRIE 12,872 4,161
Contract costs B HIBAR (@) 2,247 3,224
Deposits by eea 27,538 23,120
Deposits paid for the purchase BEYE  WENMLREER
of items of property, plant MEfike
and equipment 3,786 119
Other receivables Hfth FE UL BR FR 1,610 162
48,053 30,786
Analysed into: DR
Non-current portion IERBER D 16,794 5,820
Current portion mENE S 31,259 24,966
48,053 30,786

Financial assets included in the above balances relate to

deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history

of default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2022 and

2021, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Note:

(@)

Contract costs

The contract costs primarily related to the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer, which represent sales commission and bonuses
paid or payable to doctors and staff, that are recognised as contract costs
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the contract liabilities to
which they relate is recognised as revenue.

Management expects that incremental costs paid to doctors and staff as a
result of obtaining prepaid packages are recoverable. The Group has
therefore capitalised these costs as contract costs in the amount of
HK$2,247,000 (2021: HK$3,224,000) at 31 March 2022.

Contract costs are amortised when the related revenue is recognised.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the amount of amortisation was
HK$12,329,000 (2021: HK$6,316,000) and no impairment loss on
contract costs was made.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Time  19. R4 KIR&ZEE WA R B K

Deposits EHIFE R
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaxT FAT
Cash and bank balances B KIRTTHE 65,680 23,255
Time deposits TEHTF R 62,476 195,864
128,156 219,119
Less: Pledged time deposits, pledged for & : BHER R EEEE mMER
credit card facilities BT TR (62,476) (57,346)
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRSEEY 65,680 161,773
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRSIETHRTHERFEETEMNZ
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods )R REREVF B o T EHTFERIVIRARE
of between 1 month and 12 months depending on the MEREFRR B — 2+ _EAHT
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at EEAEIEE - WikS B B 5K F & B
the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and time AE - RITEBR N EBFERIIFEAR
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent BT REERIMNIRTT -
history of default.
20. Trade Payables 20. BZENER
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Third party suppliers FE=HHEY 7,829 2,076
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBEHR EHERNEFIZEZAH
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follow: SFEMBRE ST
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Within 1 month —fEARA 7,829 2,076
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have BIRMNERTE  FTHEEZH K
an average settlement term of 30 days. &30H8 o
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21. Other Payables and Accruals 21, Bt ENERALEGTEH
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FETT
Other payables and accruals HEMENEREETER 20,260 6,224
Receipts in advance TEURIR 207 392
20,467 6,616
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average HiEMEZ TS FHHFERE—F
term of 1 to 3 months. ={@A -
22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22, a4BaENNIELENRZ
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FHET FHIT
Deferred revenue RIEW z= 13,775 13,942
Contract liabilities AHafE (@) 116,463 154,240
130,238 168,182
Note: BiRE -
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follow: (@ AHBEBEBOT :
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Advances received from customers BREFEF
Provision of medical aesthetic services RHEBEEEZRRE 116,446 154,205
Sale of skin care products SHEEEER 17 35
Total contract liabilities wEHAaE 116,463 154,240

Contract liabilities include advances received from customers to deliver
skin care products and render medical aesthetic services. The decrease in
contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to increase in treatment sessions
performed. The carrying amount of contract liabilities represented the
amount of the transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied as of the end of the
reporting period and are expected to be recognised as revenue within the
service periods normally ranging from 3 months to 18 months from the
date of purchase. In the opinion of the Directors, the actual outcome may
be different from the amounts estimated and will be subject to the
customers’ actual utilisation pattern and prevailing laws and regulations,
taking into account of specific market conditions.
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(Continued)
Note: (Continued)

22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22. BRBE RS @)
s - (48)
(@) (Continued) (@) (&)
The movements in contract liabilities are as follow: BHBENEEHIT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FAT
At the beginning of the year REH] 154,240 122,512
Receipts from sales of one-off treatments HE—REERRER
and treatment packages, net FriSIEF58 252,536 140,725
Revenue recognised upon the provision of services 12 IRT5 14 B HER U 25 (289,096) (108,417)
Revenue recognised upon the sales of products HEEMEBEBRKEGE (1,217) (580)
At the end of the year RER 116,463 154,240
23. Provision for Reinstatement Costs 23. (BB

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of
dismantling and removing the leasehold improvements and
restoring the leased premises which they are currently located
back to their original state of condition if and when the Group

vacates these leased premises.

EERABEEEEIEE YR RBRE
EMERREUREASEBLZERE
MEREEERNMAENHEENEER

SIRRI AR AR A S B B B AR -

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

At the beginning of the year REF] 5,597 5,910
Additional provisions HRONE R 7,040 106
Amounts utilised during the year FREBARE (433) (419)
Exchange realignment [ 5, AL 1 -
At the end of the year RER 12,205 5,597
2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHIT

Analysed into: V=1

Non-current portion ERENE 10,161 5,114
Current portion mENE D 2,044 483
12,205 5,597
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24. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

24. JRIEFIE
ELRBELERBENENOESHNT -

year are as follow:

Deferred tax assets FEEBIEEE
Depreciation Losses
in excess available

of related  for offsetting
depreciation against future

allowance taxable profits Others Total
AR
AT E RRERH
BENTE BARER Hith w@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TAET
At 1 April 2020 N20205F4 A1H 749 2,430 - 3,179
Deferred tax credited FRFABEN
to profit or loss during EERIR (3E10)
the year (note 10) 816 3,027 14 3,857
At 31 March 2021 and R2021E3A31H R
1 April 2021 20214818 1,565 5,457 14 7,036
Deferred tax credited FRFABEN
to profit or loss during EERIE (3E10)
the year (note 10) 663 796 131 1,590
At 31 March 2022 R2022%F3A31H 2,228 6,253 145 8,626
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24. Deferred Tax (Continued)

24, EEFIIE ()

Deferred tax liabilities ELEBBEEE
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
depreciation
EHEETE
B E R
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2020 R2020%F4 A1 H 1,594
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FERNFABESHIELETIE
during the year (note 10) (M5 10) 231
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R2021F3A31B X
20214 A1 H 1,825
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRHIk B BEMIELETRE
during the year (note 10) (MF5E10) 1,570
At 31 March 2022 R202243 A31H 3,395
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24. Deferred Tax (Continued) 24, IRIETLTE (4)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and BERER  ETEEHRBEENEE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of EREGEMBERARIEE U TN ELAE
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax ERBEHRE BN METRELFFIEL
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: BT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Net deferred tax assets recognised AT e MBI R ER
in the consolidated statement of RIETIB A R
financial position 8,033 6,815
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised N E MBI R R
in the consolidated statement of BRI B EFE
financial position (2,802) (1,604)
5,231 5,211
At 31 March 2022, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong MR2022FE3A31H KREBREBESL
Kong of HK$37,895,000 (2021: HK$33,075,000), subject to the T 18 &5 1837,895,000% JT(2021%F :
agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, that 33,075,000/87T) - EAGFE BN HE
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable ZonEBHAUKEESAEEEED
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. NAR R IR ERBL A o
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25. Share Capital 25. JEZs
Shares % 13
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 & =R H1E
HK$0.01 each 0.01 BT iR 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,000 & & I H1E
HK$0.01 each 0.01 TRy L imAR 4,000 4,000

These was no movement in the Company’s share capital during

the year.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in

note 26 to the financial statements.

26. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)

R AARMRALEES -

BB AR
EEARRERETENFBHNIT S
MR EE26A ©

26. BRI E
ADF G — B R B & st

for the purpose of attracting and retaining the best available Z ) EERS|IRGBBEEBAS W

personnel, providing additional incentive to eligible participants,
and promoting the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
Directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, and any consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business EERS - 9
partners and service providers of any member of the Group.
The Scheme was approved and adopted by the shareholders
of the Company on 19 December 2016 and, unless otherwise

FAEEAERSEERMEINIEIA
KA AR B EBAILEE -

ZitElc A ERSEEREARFES
(BEBIFNTES ASEHME
8« NREEEAKENEMZERALT
HE s oABel #HER KR
B8P HEBRHRRBHEER) - %
FEER2016F 12 A19B EARR R K
R R - TR BT HEUE B ET

cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from G ZEHE S HZ BRI 10ERTIEDR

that date.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
maximum number of shares available for issue was 40,000,000,
representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue.

5 o
R EM BRI B AEZA E*m—ﬁ’*

1TR% 17 8 & /540,000,000 A% » 1§42
BETRDAI10% ©
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20.

27.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company to each participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the total shares of the Company in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such
date on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
Directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the Directors may
determine in granting the option but in any event not exceeding
10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 7 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.0.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
Directors provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (j)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and {iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

During the year, the Company did not grant any share options
to any eligible participant under the scheme (2021: Nil).

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein during the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 102 of the
financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents reserves arising from the
reorganisation of the Group in connection with the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the merger reserve was
reclassified to retained profits upon the dissolution of the
subsidiary involved in the reorganisation.
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28. Related Party Transactions
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with related parties during the

28. FET RS

(@)

bR ax LRI ISR BAR &R 0 PTRF AL Y
R o RAERRSN  REBRFRHRER
BEHARNTRS

year:
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B aE FHET FHIT
A related company: —REEEQF
Endorsement fee REE 0] 2,100 -
0] The fee was paid for the endorsement related services provided by 0] BRI A — IR IR AT ) —
a related company controlled by a controlling shareholder. HEAEARREENOR S EEREM
Ao
(o) Compensation of key management personnel of the by AEEBFEEEABNF (B

Group, including Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in
note 8 to the financial statements, is as follow:

BB I 8 TR B E )
T

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Fees ok 600 350
Short term employee benefits EHES R 8,336 7,163
Post-employment benefits BEE 2 1R A 36 35
8,972 7,548

29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows

(@) Major non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered
into rental agreements in respect of its office premises.
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$115,111,000 (2021: HK$11,335,000) were
recognised in respect of lease arrangements for leased
properties. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
rental agreements, the Group is required to restore the
sites to the conditions as stipulated in the rental
agreements. Accordingly, the Group had also accrued
and capitalised the estimated restoration cost of
HK$7,040,000 (2021: HK$106,000) when such
obligations arose.

29. 43

(a)

RS MERME

FEFRERS
REZE2022F3A31B IEFE -
AREEFRERASYEIHAER
o HEMENEELRHRERY
FRAEEELHEBEEREAR
115,111,000 7T (20214 :
11,335,000 7T ) ° RIZHE Hix
R R G - AR BAKZS S
FrHsE 2 ERH A TN
It - REBE IS RET R E ML A
BEEBEERETNEERSN
7,040,000 7t (20214 : 106,000
ABIT) ©
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows (Continued)

9. MEHETRERM T @)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RETHELNERSEH
activities
2022 2022 F

Lease liabilities

HEEE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4 A1 H 42,486
Changes from financing cash flows BMERESRELRD (28,735)
New leases s 115,111
Finance costs BA RS B AR 3,027
Interest paid classified as PEALEREREMENFE
operating cash flow (3,027)
COVID-19-related rent concessions R B A ERIENFE SR % (1,297)
Exchange realignment [E i, A 19
At 31 March 2022 202243 A31H 127,584
2021 2021
Lease liabilities
HEAE
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April 2020 R2020F 4 A1H 48,503
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREE (14,650)
New leases e 11,335
Termination of leases HEKIE (640)
Finance costs YR IDIN 1,849
Interest paid classified as DEACERERENDHFE
operating cash flow (1,849)
COVID-19-related rent concessions  ER#F B A BRI TR SR % (2,059
Exchange realignment & A (7)
At 31 March 2021 20213 A31H 42,486
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30. Pledge of Assets 30. EEEH
Details of the Group’s credit card facilities granted by financial HEemEER T AEENER<EER
institutions, which are secured by the assets of the Group, are EVEAEREEFEERT  BHEEEEH
included in note 19 to the financial statements. BRI FE19

31. Commitments 31, A&IE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of NEB R E AR A THE RAESE

32.

the reporting period:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: BERTH) - BRFHEEME -
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ BB R&E 340,000 -
Financial Instruments by Category 32. wEFES eI A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial NSRS ESR T ANKRABERNT -
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follow:
Financial assets SREE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Financial assets at amortised cost: REBHEK AT ENEREE ¢
Trade receivables H 5 R BR SR 2,237 16,263
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5t AFERTFIE - H b EULBR I
other receivables and other assets REMEENSREE 29,148 22,336
Pledged time deposits [REEwEIEE EEES 62,476 57,346
Cash and cash equivalents HERIESEEY 65,680 161,773
159,541 257,718
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32. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 32. IREBE TR T A @

Financial liabilities =R

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHEIT

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REEK AT ENEREE
Trade payables B S EMERER 7,829 2,076

Financial liabilities included in other sFAEMDERBRR N B E
payables and accruals HEFAaRE 17,858 3,123
Lease liabilities HEBE 127,584 42,486
153,271 47,685

33. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial ~ 33. @@ TE/AFEL A FESF
Instruments &
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial AEESHTANREBELRAFE(TE
instruments, other than those carrying amounts that reasonably EZERAEHEATESAERAEN SR

approximate to fair values, are as follow: TE)WT :
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE A¥EE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET TExT FETT
Financial assets EREE
Deposits, non-current portion %4  IERENEL D 13,008 5,701 12,078 5,043

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade receivables,
trade payables, the current portion of financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following method and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

33.

34.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (Continued)

The fair values of non-current portion of deposits are estimated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.

Fair value hierarchy

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no financial
assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Regarding the assets and liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed, the fair value measurement of the non-current
portion of deposits was classified as Level 2. During the year,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2021: Nil).

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise pledged
time deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and lease
liabilities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 March. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

33.

34.

PR ITANAFTERATES
Bm)
BEERDBHNATECREARA
BELIGER  EERRRISFERNT
BHRAN R RER R KRS R BT
HGH -

DFESFR

RBEHRR - AEERGEPBERREK
P EE AR AT EAENSREES
TEARE -

REBEQLFEMNEERARBMS ' &
THIERB NN AT EAFEDEAS
“HoFRN cHMEERERABNA
FEFEVEF —REF - HoENHE
o JREE A s #E = 4 (2021 4 -
) -

TR E R EIE B IE MR

AEEIECHIARREEREHT
FARRERREFEY AEEEZ
HEMEMEENMEE  HINE SRR
BRAX - SHATAENSOR - Bt AR R
HMBEENTMEE  BHRNEHRNU
Rt AR ENERA LB ERAN TR
BEREERE-

AEEERIANTIERBRAEERR
EnBhEehk EFSRNIREE
BEEBAARBRNEEK - & TRREN
T

ERAR
AR R R R T
EHEEREERT AERX -

BB K FERER
TREINENAEBNEERRNEER
BEEM&EAXEERR TEENBHE
F(BRIFEMER AT BBN BT U R
AIENHERTES) - MR3HA31H
MEGHEEI BN - 2N ERE
MBS EEMARREE
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B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022

34. cRiEMEIEEENREE &)

EERk (&)
BAEKREERE(E)
R20224F3 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A&
FEF#B 2HRNEERS
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
BT B = b #@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER
Trade receivables® R RIER - - - 2,273 2,273
Financial assets included in STATBFRE -
prepayments, other receivables  E i FEUTBR 2 K
and other assets HEER
PRAE
— Normal ** — EE* 29,148 - - - 29,148
Pledged time deposits BB THER
— Not yet past due — MR 62,476 - - - 62,476
Cash and cash equivalents BERBELEEY
— Not yet past due — MRS 65,680 - - - 65,680
157,304 - - 2273 159,577
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B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 31 March 2021

34. cRiEMEIEE ENREE (&)

EERk (&)
BAERREERE(E)
MR2021F3A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12 8 A8
FEE#E 2HEHREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-TRE FRRE E=RE BIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT TET THET FAT
Trade receivables” B HRER - - - 16,391 16,391
Financial assets included in BUNSEECER
prepayments, other receivables  E-fh FEURBE T &
and other assets Hith & EH)
PREE
— Normal ** —EE*™ 22,336 - - - 22,336
Pledged time deposits EERERER
— Not yet past due — AR 57,346 - - - 57,346
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREEED
— Not yet past due — HABH 161,773 - - - 161,773
241,455 - - 16,391 257,846

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 17 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

MASEERERAHOENE SRR
s ABEEMESERNERNSBRE

FRE17 IR -

SHATAENFUR - A b USRS R A M EER
CREERROHK LT EEHERELEY)
HHERARNEERR A REEN - 8
CREENEEERRARIES] BRI

ZETMEENERERWER [F5] -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follow:

34. cRtEREIEBENRBE &)

REBETER

SREERDETAR  AREEERRE
SEEERSRENERE LIRS FEY
KF - ARAKENEERMHES IR
BERERERPNTE AKBETHE
EHIZESHRRNABRE T ROUB
BRETEMBHEL -

RBEHR - AEEERDITHRTER
R emaENRIRERNT

2022 2022 F
Within
1 year or 1to5
on demand years Total
—£R
RRER —-ZEHE Fohy
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THER TER TER
Trade payables B SRR 1,829 = 7,829
Financial liabilities included in AR MR RI K
other payables and accruals EFERANSREAE 17,858 - 17,858
Lease liabilities HEGE 41,667 100,261 141,928
67,354 100,261 167,615
2021 2021
Within
1 year or 1tob
on demand years Total
—FR
IR EK —E0fF FCEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHL
Trade payables 2 HENERN 2,076 - 2,076
Financial liabilities included in EHAE AR BRI
other payables and accruals EAERNERAE 3,123 - 3,123
Lease liabilities HEBE 18,148 26,568 44,716
23,347 26,568 49,915
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B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and SREREEEERBE )

Policies (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to the shareholders, return capital to the shareholders
or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of the
shareholders’ equity.

EXERE
AEEERNEENTIZERARERE
BRELLENENAEFRENEARL
T AXFHEEBRAGERANRRE
=0

Kﬁlm#%@#ﬂmk&m%ﬁﬁm

REHEERABREERNERE - B
Hiﬂﬁ§$ B AEEgRAERR
RIS - MR R EARE R
REITHIR D - AEEBAEETFERIN
EBEARBNR - REE2022F3A31 B X
2021 F3A31BIFE EAEEMNE
= BeR j@/}uﬂ‘&:[ﬁ “““““ £ o
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B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BHZE2022F3A31HIEFE

35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  35. 2K & 2 B i& ik R 3=

Information about the statement of financial position of the

ARBRIERRO B BN KR E R N

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follow: T
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZRE - -
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T RRIE & EoAth fE U AR 3R 1 230
Due from subsidiaries Y= NGIE /S 16,396 -
Pledged time deposits BRI E BT 3K - 53,671
Cash and cash equivalents RekIREEEY 47,501 123,503
Total current assets MENEEBE 63,898 177,404
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Accruals FEETER 691 191
Due to subsidiaries FETHY B A 53 0E - 114,823
Total current liabilities mEAGEEE 691 115,014
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEEE 63,207 62,390
Net assets EEFE 63,207 62,390
EQUITY Ex
Issued capital TR 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note (a)) it (B () 59,207 58,390
Total equity EmBE 63,207 62,390
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BHZE2022F3 A31 HIEFE

35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  35.

RAR) 2GR ()

(Continued)
Note: B E
(@) A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follow: (@) AATIEEOBRENT -
Share
premium Accumulated Total
account losses equity
R A7 5 E R Sy i ERME
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FA&T FAT FA&T
At 1 April 2020 7H2020%F 4 A1H 67,788 (11,818) 55,970
Profit for the year and total comprehensive — FEE%FI R EE 2 EWZS LT
income for the year - 2,420 2,420
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R2021F3A31 B K&
202144 510 67,788 (9,398) 58,300
Profit for the year and total comprehensive — FEE 5% FI R EE 2 EW LR
income for the year - 817 817
At 31 March 2022 % 202243 A31 B 67,788 (8,581) 59,207

36. Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of Directors on 24 June 2022.

306.

i3 P B
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFMBRE

For the year ended 31 March
BE3ASIHLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FTHET T FAET FHBT THBT

RESULTS E

Revenue U %5 363,915 128,871 176,529 154,695 127,213
Profit/(loss) before tax BRES AR (E58) 31,201 (16,217) 15,669 26,389 31,457
Income tax credit/(expense)  FrigEiE %, (FsZ) (5,819) 3,564 (2,113) (4,591) (4,944)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERMN(FE) 25,382 (12,653) 13,556 21,798 26,513

As at 31 March
M3A31H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET T FAET T TET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
Total assets wAE 476,814 372,135 357,251 281,425 223,371
Total liabilities mefE (305,544) (226,561) (199,020) (139,699) (106,268)

Equity attributable to owners A2 &1# A AJElL
of the Company 2 7 171,270 145,574 158,231 141,726 117,103

W
B
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